
City Council Workshop Agenda 
July 14, 2020 

Page 1 of 1 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Workshop Agenda 

Tuesday, July 14, 2020 - 4:30 p.m. 
Kinchion Room (Council) and Evans Room (Public) 

at the Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
PLEASE NOTE: FACE COVERINGS WILL BE REQUIRED 

WHERE SOCIAL DISTANCING CANNOT BE 
MAINTAINED. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Conduct a work session on a proposed Municipal Utility District on the River Farms 

property located on the east side of IH-35, north of the Lampasas River. 
 
3. Adjourn. 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 14, 2020 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Workshop Agenda Item #2 
 
Conduct a work session on a proposed Municipal Utility District on the River Farms property 
located on the east side of IH-35, north of the Lampasas River. 
     
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
 
Summary Information 
 
Steve Utley and the River Farms Development Team presented a concept plan to Mayor 
Grayson, Councilmember Holmes, and City Staff on June 11th. At that time the broad outline 
of a Municipal Utility District as a developer financing mechanism was discussed for the first 
time. This Council Work Session will provide an opportunity for the information to be 
presented to the entire Council, with the opportunity for questions. 
 
The River Farms property has been owned by the Utley family for 30 years. It contains 
481.8 acres located along the Lampasas River. See attached map. Most of the property 
(304± acres) is subject to a five year Non-Annexation Development Agreement, executed in 
2016, which allows Council evaluation of annexation prior to development. See attachment. 
Three additional parcels are currently located in the city limits (177± acres). 
 
The City is in the process of completing plans for wastewater and water to serve this area 
east of IH 35. The engineers are at 95% plan completion, and all easements have been 
submitted. 
 
The developer has proposal consideration of at least two potential Special Purpose Districts 
to facilitate reimbursement for funding of infrastructure and amenities: 
 

1. MUD – Municipal Utility District (could be inside or outside the city limits); and 
2. MUD with a TIRZ (Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone) Overlay (would be inside 

the city). 
 
Both financing tools can reimburse the developer for public improvement costs. There are 
many details to be addressed in a possible Development Agreement, if the Council supports 
the idea of establishing a MUD here, including: 
 

• Whether the property will be brought into the city limits – all or some? Now or later? 
Or will the property be deannexed? 

• What basic services, if any, will the City provide if outside the City and at what cost? 
• Will the City contribute financially to the project? 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 14, 2020 

Page 2 of 2

• Does the City prefer an out-of-City MUD (like Three Creeks), a traditional in-City
development, or is a combination acceptable?

• What are the financial and community implications of the variety of choices in land
development?

• What density and development standards will apply?

The developer’s team will present an overview at the Work Session, we will seek to answer 
Council questions, and then we will work to implement Council’s direction. 

Recommendation 

Conduct Work Session. No final action is contemplated. 

Attachments 

Map of River Farms Property 
Non-Annexation Development Agreement 





From: Amy Casey
To: John Messer; Sam Listi
Subject: River Farm Property
Date: Monday, July 6, 2020 12:02:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

The following properties are included in a Non-Annexation Development
Agreement:
 
99274 = 9.594 acres
99277 = 5.229 acres (includes residence)
99278 = 279.172 acres
 
The following properties are NOT included in a Non-Annexation Development
Agreement:
 
352790 = 48.579 acres
397580 = 44.814 acres
397593 = 94.406 acres
 
Total of all acreage = 481.794
 
Thanks,
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Amy M. Casey, TRMC, CMC
City Clerk
333 Water Street (physical)
P.O. Box 120 (mailing)
Belton, TX 76513
T 254.933.5817
acasey@beltontexas.gov
www.BeltonTexas.Gov

Connect with City of Belton

 
Please take a moment to complete the City of Belton Customer Satisfaction Survey.
 

mailto:ACasey@BeltonTexas.Gov
mailto:JMesser@BeltonTexas.Gov
mailto:slisti@beltontexas.gov
mailto:acasey@beltontexas.gov
http://www.beltontexas.gov/
https://www.facebook.com/beltontexasgov/
https://twitter.com/beltontexasgov
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/WT32H22



,. 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BELL § 

CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

Doc=:= 00048999 

PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 43 TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Sections 43.035 and 212.172 of the Texas Local 
Government Code by and between the City of Belton, Texas (the "City'') and the undersigned 
property owner(s) (the "Owner"). The term "Owner" includes all owners of the Property. 

WHEREAS, the Owner owns a parcel of real property (the "Property") in Bell County, 
Texas, which is more particularly and separately described as follows: 

Geographic ID # Property ID # 
0466420000 99274 
0553740000 99277 
0553740001 99278 

and which is appraised for ad valorem tax purposes as land for agricultural or wildlife 
management use under Subchapter C or D, Chapter 23, Tax Code, or as timber land under 
Subchapter E of that chapter of the Tax Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner desires to have the Property remain in the City's extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, in consideration for which the Owner agrees to enter into this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is entered into pursuant to Sections 43.035 and 212.172 of 
the Texas Local Government Code, in order to address the desires of the Owner and the 
procedures of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner and the City acknowledge that this Agreement is binding upon 
the City and the Owner and their respective successors and assigns for the term (defined below) 
of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council authorized and approved this agreement at a regularly
scheduled council meeting subject to the Open Meetings Act in compliance with the laws of the 
State of Texas and the ordinances and Charter of the City on November 22, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, this Development Agreement is to be recorded in the real property records 
of Bell County, Texas; and 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties 
hereto agree as follows : 

Page 1of8 

After Recording return to: 
City of Belton 
Attn: City Clerk 
P.O. Box 120 
Belton, Texas 76513 



Section 1. Agreement by the City. The City guarantees the continuation of the extraterritorial 
status of the Owner' s Property, its immunity from annexation by the City, and its immunity from 
City property taxes, for the term of this Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions contained 
herein. Except as provided in this Agreement, the City agrees not to annex the Property, agrees 
not to involuntarily institute proceedings to annex the Property, and further agrees not to include 
the Property in a statutory annexation plan for the Term of this Agreement. However, if the 
Property is annexed pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, then the City shall provide services 
to the Property pursuant to Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

Section 2. Agreement by the Owner. (a) The Owner covenants and agrees that at all times 
during the Term hereof the Property shall be appraised for ad valorem tax purposes as land for ad 
valorem tax purposes as land for agricultural or wildlife management use under Subchapter C or 
D, Chapter 23 , Tax Code, or as timberland under Subchapter E of that chapter. In addition, the 
Property shall not be used for any use other than agriculture, wildlife management, and/or timber 
land management consistent with Chapter 23 of the Texas Tax Code, except for any existing 
single-family residential use of the property, without the prior written consent of the City. 

(b) The Owner has completed and executed an Affidavit of Tax Appraisal Status and Current 
Uses, which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit "A," and included herein as part of this 
Agreement as if set out in full , and the Owner acknowledges that the City is entitled to rely on 
such Affidavit as being correct and complete in all respects. 

(c) The Owner covenants and agrees that the Owner will not file any type of subdivision plat or 
related development document for the Property with Bell County, the City, or any other 
government agency having jurisdiction of the Property, until the Property has been annexed into, 
and zoned by, the City. Further, the Owner shall not take such action to develop or subdivide the 
Property that would require a plat to be filed with the City or the County under State law. 

( d) Except as provided herein, the Owner covenants and agrees not to construct, or allow to be 
constructed, any buildings, other than one single family residence (new ·or a replacement for an 
existing single family residence), an addition to a single family residence, or one or more 
accessory buildings reasonably needed to support the Agricultural use of the Property, provided 
the Owner obtains a permit from the City to construct such improvements. Improvements are 
subject to City-required setbacks and spacing in the Agricultural Zoning District to facilitate 
future platting, and to conform to the appropriate lot sizes. The Owner must obtain a permit from 
the City prior to starting construction on any improvements. The Owner also covenants and 
agrees that the City' s "A" or "Agricultural" zoning district requirements apply to the Property, 
and that the Property shall be used only for uses allowed in an A- Agricultural zoning district that 
exist on that Property at the time of the execution of this Agreement, unless otherwise provided 
in this Agreement. 

(e) The Owner, and all of the Owner's heirs, successors and assigns shall be deemed to have 
filed a petition for voluntary annexation of the Property effective upon a date to be established by 
the City Council, such date to be on or after the expiration of the Term hereof. Prior to the end of 
the Term, the City may commence the voluntary annexation of the Property, provided that the 

Page 2of8 

.. 



annexation shall not be finalized until after the expiration of the Term. In connection with 
annexation pursuant to this section, the Owner hereby waives any vested development rights 
Owner may have under Section 43.002(a)(2) and Chapter 245 of the Texas Local Government 
Code, or that would otherwise exist by virtue of any plat, or any construction Owner may initiate 
during the time between the expiration of this Agreement and the institution of annexation 
proceedings by the City. 

(f) The Owner acknowledges that each and every owner of the Property must sign this 
Agreement in order for the Agreement to take full effect, and the Owner who signs this 
Agreement covenants and agrees, jointly and severably, to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend 
the City against any and all legal claims, by any person claiming an ownership interest in the 
Property who has not signed the Agreement, arising in an~ way from the City's reliance on this 
Agreement. 

(g) This section acknowledges the provision of §232.0015(e), Exception to Plat Requirements, 
which will not require a plat if property is sold, given, or otherwise transferred to an individual 
who is related to the owner within the 3rd degree of consanguinity or affinity, resulting in a parcel 
of twenty (20) acres or more in area. 

Section 3. Deemed Voluntary Annexation Upon Disqualification or Breach. 

(a) Notwithstanding any contrary ·provision herein, the City may annex the Property in whole or 
in part if: (i) the Property ceases to be appraised for agricultural, wildlife management or timber 
use as provided herein; (ii) the Property is used for any use other than a Permitted Use; (iii) any 
plat or related development document is filed in violation of this Agreement; or (iv) the Owner is 
otherwise in default hereunder or in breach hereof. The Owner acknowledges that a violation of 
this Agreement will constitute a petition for voluntary annexation by the Owner, and the 
Property will be subject to annexation at the discretion of the City Council. The Owner agrees 
that such annexation shall be voluntary and the Owner hereby consents to such annexation as 
though an irrevocable petition for such annexation had been tendered by the Owner. 

(b) If annexation proceedings begin pursuant to this Section, the Owner acknowledges that this 
Agreement serves as an exception to Local Government Code Section 43.052, requiring a 
municipality to use certain statutory procedures under an annexation plan. Furthermore, the 
Owner hereby waives any and all vested rights and claims that they may have under Section 
43 .002(a)(2) and Chapter 245 of the Texas Local Government Code, or that would otherwise 
exist by virtue of any actions Owner has taken in violation of Section 2 herein. 

Section 4. Owner Agreement that City May Enforce Its Development and Planning 
Regulations on Property. Pursuant to Sections 43 .035(b)(l)(B) of the Texas Local Government 
Code, the City is authorized to enforce all of the City's regulations and planning authority that do 
not materially interfere with the use of the Property for agriculture, wildlife management, or 
timber, in the same manner the regulations are enforced within the City's boundaries. The Owner 
agrees that all regulations and planning authority of the City that do not interfere with the 
Permitted Uses may be enforced with respect to the Property in the same manner the regulations 

Page 3of8 



are enforced within the City's boundaries, including but not limited to development regulations, 
zoning regulations, building permit requirements, and other City regulations as they currently 
exist or may be enacted in the future. The Owner consents to the jurisdiction of the Municipal 
Court of the City of Belton for the purpose of prosecuting criminal violations of City regulations 
on the Property. The City specifically reserves its authority pursuant to Chapter 251 of the Texas 
Local Government Code to exercise eminent domain over property that is subject to a Chapter 43 
and/or Chapter 212 development agreement. 

Section 5. Term. (a) The term of this Agreement (the "Term") shall be five (5) years from the 
date that the City Manager' s signature to this Agreement is acknowledged by a notary public. 

Section 6. Future Zoning of Property. Property annexed pursuant to this Agreement will 
initially be zoned "A-Agricultural'' pursuant to the City's Code of Ordinances, pending 
determination of the property' s permanent zoning in accordance with the provisions of 
applicable law and the City's Code of Ordinances. 

Section 7. Permits and Vested Rights. Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 
43 .035 this Agreement is not a permit for purposes of Chapter 245 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, that the Agreement shall be deemed to be a petition for voluntary annexation. 
The Owner and all Owner's heirs, successors and assigns hereby waive any and all vested rights 
including rights and claims that they may have under common law, federal case law or Section 
43 .002 of the Texas Local Government Code related to uses, anticipated uses or potential uses of 
the Property, other than the existing uses. 

Section 8. No Municipal Services. The City shall not be obligated to provide the Owner with 
any municipal services (such as police protection, fire protection, drainage and street 
construction, or maintenance), with respect to the Property for the duration of this Agreement. 

Section 9. Notice to Third Parties. Any person who sells or conveys any portion of the 
Property shall, prior to such sale or conveyance, give written notice of this Agreement to the 
prospective purchaser or grantee, and shall give written notice of the sale or conveyance to the 
City. Furthermore, the Owner and the Owner's heirs, successors, and assigns shall give the City 
written notice within 14 days of any change in the agricultural, wildlife management or timber 
management (as applicable) exemption status of the Property. A copy of either notice required 
by this section shall be forwarded to the City at the following address: 

City of Belton, Texas 
Attn: City Manager 
P.O. Box 120 
Belton, TX 76513 

Section 10. Agreement Runs with the Land. This Agreement shall run with the Property and 
be recorded in the real property records of Bell County, Texas. 

Section 11. Severance Clause. The provisions of this Agreement are severable. If a court or 
government agency of competent jurisdiction finds that any provision of this Agreement is 

Page 4of8 



unenforceable, the unenforceable provision shall be replaced, to the extent possible, with a legal, 
enforceable, and valid provision that is as similar in tenor to the unenforceable provision as is 
legally possible, and the Agreement as so-modified shall be enforced to the greatest extent 
permitted by law, except when such construction would constitute a substantial deviation from 
the general intent and purpose of such parties as reflected in this Agreement. 

Section 12. No Waiver. This Agreement may be enforced by any Owner or the City by any 
proceeding at law or in equity. Failure to do so shall not be deemed a waiver to enforce the 
provisions of this Agreement thereafter. 

Section 13. Enforcement. This Agreement may be enforced by any Owner or the City by any 
proceeding at law or in equity. The remedies herein provided shall not be deemed to be 
exclusive, but shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to all other remedies in its favor 
existing in law, in equity or in bankruptcy. No subsequent change in the law regarding 
annexation shall affect the enforceability of this Agreemel).t or the City's ability to annex the 
Property pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Failure to do so shall not be deemed a waiver 
to enforce the provisions of this Agreement thereafter. 

Section 14. Applicable law and Venue. This Agreement was executed in Bell County, Texas, 
and is governed by the laws of the State of Texas. The venue for any legal proceeding to enforce 
or interpret the provisions of this Agreement shall be in Bell County, Texas. 

Section 15. Multiple copies. This Agreement may be separately executed m individual 
counterparts and, upon execution, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 16. Survival of Certain Rights of the City Upon Termination. This Agreement shall 
survive its termination to the extent necessary for the implementation of the provisions of 
Sections 2, 3, and 4 herein. 

Section 17. Construction. This Agreement shall be construed fairly and simply, and not strictly 
for or against any party. Headings used throughout this Agreement are for convenience and 
reference only, and the words contained therein shall in no way be held to explain, restrict, 
modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation or construction of the meaning of the provisions of 
this Agreement. 

Section 18. Further Assurances. Each party shall, from time to time, upon the written request 
of any other party, execute and deliver such further instruments and documents as may be 
reasonably necessary to perform its obligations hereunder or to give full effect to this 
Agreement. 

Section 19. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with its exhibits, constitutes the entire 
agreement of the parties concerning the subject matter hereof. There are no oral representations, 
warranties, agreements, or promises pertaining to such matters not incorporated in writing in this 
Agreement. This Agreement may be amended only as mutually agreed upon in writing and duly 
executed by authorized representatives of the parties. 

Page 5of8 



£nrtru1 info fh1s zzn.d. day of Novt,mbttJ ZOI~. 
Property Owners 

,(J, v.g e, Me..r& 6 r-d, -- ;tµ-/{. 'lnr. " 
Signature A ~ piJX.J..b~RJ7' ,e !lnsv7JI: ~$1;n.o.+",,.e-J 

Signature .f · ~ 
Printed Name: XtD8,(LI f{. cATL£y_JIL_ 

Signature 
Printed Name: 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

Signature 
Printed Name: 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

City of Belton, Texas 

kJ.·~· 
Sam.A. Listi 
Gity~~ager. . . '.{ .. 

.. • · • .. ( i 
-{., . . -.. f<: . . . 

- . U.//ZMtlAI 

~ ~~asey ,. , l . 

~s::1(~tl<?~~ ..... . 
' . ':/ 

THE ST ATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF BELL 

§ 

§ 

Approved as to form: 

dg~ 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _z7nd day of /J/c;~ her_, 
20-11__, by Sam A. Listi, City Manager, City of Belton, Texas. 

N~c!~ex~ 
S'~~~~~l'? ANDREA MICHELLE GARCIA 
gf:':A,;{~~ Notary Public, State of Texas 
-;."Jf.·.~ .• ~S Comm. Expires 08· 11-2018 

-.;">. ····'<"'~$ '11fiftt,11''" Notary ID 655637·2 

Page 6of8 



THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BELL § 

This instrument was acknowledged bef<?re me on "'J ] the day of Ocf vb e_.1 
20 j(_, by , Owner. 

No~~f:'Mi~ 
'''""'"''• ANGELA WOFFORD 

..... ~" Pq ''~ I T f:o~~t!'-.. Notary Public. State o exas 
5 !.~.: .. ~ My commission Expires 
\:...;;;, .... ,;.+;,,,:: octobe1 06, 2019 .,,,,,,,<::..,\\''' 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BELL § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ------ -
20 _ _ , by , Owner. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

THESTATEOFTEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BELL § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of -------
20 _ _ , by , Owner. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

THE STA TE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BELL § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ______ _ 
20 _ _ , by , Owner. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

Page 7 of8 



Exhibit "A" 

Affidavit of Tax Appraisal Status and Current Uses 

·lio&El1' /,/,,. ~t:? appeared in person before me today and stated under oath: 

"My name is A~e..~7 k. lh-'-f:.'/ 1tJ; I am competent to make this affidavit. The 
facts stated in this affidavit are within my personal knowledge and are true and correct. I am the 
owner of a parcel of real property (the "Property'') in Bell County, Te:xas. which is more 
particularly and separatelv described as geographic identification number __}__ and property~ 

~ identification number _ 2> _, and which is appraised for ad valorem tax purposes as land for 
agricultural or wildlife management use under Subchapter C or D, Chapter 23, J ax Code, or as 
timber land under Subchapter E of that chapter of the Tax Code. --K ~E&a fl1-rJ+C!,,f..I EE.D 

The current improvements on my Property are as follows: (Please list all permanent property 
improvements, for example, buildings, signs, or other structures, on the Property as shown on 
your most recent statement received from the Bell County Appraisal District and improvements 
which have been added by you since January 1, 2016): = /~°!_'fr~:~!:{-/75;~ :::.~0 ~1e~GNir 
A:ni;y; b c2 0/ b 

The current uses being made of my Property are as follows : (for example: farming, grazing, 
~le family residential, retail, commercial or industrial uses) ~ 

A.11rnA .t.-:., UN V:; ~m14 v 'f'lt,e,.r 7701 IC :es1.()E?.N~ 

I understand that the information provided herein will be used by the City to substantiate my 
current use of my Property, and to determine during the term of this Agreement to which this 
Affidavit is an Exhibit, whether the uses of the Property have changed, and that providing 
misleading information will invalidate my Agreement with the City. 

Executed on this 01, 1 day of {J(Lf Ob e_ f' ,20&. 

Property Owner 

Signature 

· s instrument was acknowledged before me on the "). 7 day of 0 c-k.S e.r , 20 1 f.o , by 

1\:-111!::1!!~~:----<-+'.........,~-":"'=t!.~- , Owner. 

1>~ (J.; v~1Lf+ A.~ / J/7/Vd -~ LLJo//~ 
).... 'JJ. Notary'Publlc, State ofTexatD' 

Page 8of 8 

~-"...';.¥~''f.~':'•,, ANGELA WOFFORD 
!~~~~l Notary Public. State ot Texas 
?,..;;. .• ~.·~$ My Commission Expires 
"-"!:,,~;<r,\;;:..~-~ October 08, 2019 



. . 

70 2016 00048999 

Recorded On: December 06, 2016 

Parties: UTLEY ROBERT K Ill 

To CITY OF BELTON 

Comment: 

Recordings 

Total Recording: 

39.00 

39.00 

Bell County 
Shelley Coston 
County Clerk 

Belton, Texas 76513 

Instrument Number: 2016-00048999 
As 

Recordings 

( Parties listed above are for Clerks reference only ) 

** Examined and Charged as Follows: ** 

Billable Pages: 8 

Number of Pages: 9 

************ DO NOT REMOVE. THIS PAGE IS PART OF THE INSTRUMENT ************ 

File Information: 

Any provision herein wh ich restricts the Sale , Rental or use of the described REAL PROPERTY 
because of color or race is invalid and unenforceable under federal law. 

Record and Return To: 
Document Number: 2016-00048999 

Receipt Number: 287220 

Recorded Date/Time: December 06, 2016 03:31 :59P 

User I Station: K Salamone - Cash Station 4 

CITY OF BELTON 

PO BOX 120 

BELTON TX 76513 

I hereby certify Iha! !his instrumenl was filed on lhe dale and lime slamped hereon and was duly recel'ded in lhe Real Property 
Records in Bell Coon~, Texas 

Shelley Coston A. . . n . 
Bell County Clerk ~ ~ 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 14, 2020 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, July 14, 2020 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room (Council) and Evans Room (Public) 

 Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
PLEASE NOTE: FACE COVERINGS WILL BE REQUIRED 

WHERE SOCIAL DISTANCING CANNOT BE 
MAINTAINED. 

 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Dan Kirkley. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Planning Cheryl Maxwell. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Councilmember David K. Leigh. 
 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Public Comments. 

 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 

 
Consent Agenda 
 
Items 3-5 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 14, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

3. Consider minutes of June 23, 2020, City Council Meeting. 
 
4. Consider a resolution finding no objection to a petition from the Salado Volunteer 

Fire Department for the creation of Bell County Emergency Services District No. 1 
which includes an area in Belton’s ETJ. 

 
5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with the 

CTCOG Counties and the Cities of Temple, Killeen, Copperas Cove and Harker 
Heights to develop Transit Alternatives. 

 
Planning and Zoning 
 
6. Hold a public hearing and consider a resolution for demolition of the structure at 603 

South Penelope Street, also described as Belton Original, Block 038, part of Lots 2 
and 4 (S 35' of E 90' of 2 and N 40' of E 90' of 4), Griffin/Mitchell Contract. The 
owner on the tax roll is Betty Ligon, c/o Kerry and Robert Griffin. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
7. Hold a public hearing and discuss proposed Charter amendments. 
 
8. Conduct a work session and discuss changing the name of Confederate Park and 

Confederate Park Drive. 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 14, 2020 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, July 14, 2020 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room (Council) and Evans Room (Public) 

 Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 

PLEASE NOTE: FACE COVERINGS WILL BE REQUIRED 
WHERE SOCIAL DISTANCING CANNOT BE 

MAINTAINED. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Dan Kirkley. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Planning Cheryl Maxwell. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Councilmember David K. Leigh. 
 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Public Comments. 

 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 

 
Consent Agenda 
 
Items 3-5 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 14, 2020 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
3. Consider minutes of June 23, 2020, City Council Meeting. 
 

A copy of the minutes is attached. Recommend approval. 
 
4. Consider a resolution finding no objection to a petition from the Salado 

Volunteer Fire Department for the creation of Bell County Emergency Services 
District No. 1 which includes an area in Belton’s ETJ. 

 
See Staff Report from Fire Chief Jon Fontenot. Recommend adoption of the 
resolution finding no objection to the creation of the ESD. 

 
5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Interlocal Agreement 

with the CTCOG Counties and the Cities of Temple, Killeen, Copperas Cove 
and Harker Heights to develop Transit Alternatives. 

 
See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Recommend authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into the agreement as presented. 

 
Planning and Zoning 
 
6. Hold a public hearing and consider a resolution for demolition of the structure 

at 603 South Penelope Street, also described as Belton Original, Block 038, 
part of Lots 2 and 4 (S 35' of E 90' of 2 and N 40' of E 90' of 4), Griffin/Mitchell 
Contract. The owner on the tax roll is Betty Ligon, c/o Kerry and Robert Griffin. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. Recommend adoption of 
the resolution ordering demolition of the dilapidated structure located at 603. South 
Penelope. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
7. Hold a public hearing and discuss proposed Charter amendments. 
 

See Staff Report from City Clerk Amy Casey and City Manager Sam Listi. 
Recommend receiving the presentation from Charter Review Committee Chair Dave 
Covington followed by the public hearing. No action is required of the Council at this 
time. An additional presentation and public hearing is scheduled for July 28th, and 
action to call a Charter Amendment Election for November 3, 2020, is scheduled for 
August 11, 2020. 

 
8. Conduct a work session and discuss changing the name of Confederate Park 

and Confederate Park Drive. 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 14, 2020 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Recommend conducting the work 
session. No action is required of the Council at this time. 
 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 23, 2020 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in an in-person/virtual meeting via Zoom meeting due to 
the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency that has been declared by Governor Greg 
Abbott, Bell County Judge David Blackburn and Belton Mayor Marion Grayson. 
Members present included Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor Pro Tem Wayne Carpenter 
(Zoom) and Councilmembers David K. Leigh, John R. Holmes, Sr., Craig Pearson 
(Zoom), Guy O’Banion and Dan Kirkley. Staff present included Sam Listi, John Messer, 
Amy Casey, Gene Ellis, Cheryl Maxwell, Paul Romer, Chris Brown, Cynthia Hernandez, 
Mike Rodgers, Susan Allamon and Jeremy Allamon.  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Councilmember Guy O’Banion 
and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag was led by City Clerk Amy Casey. The 
Invocation was given by Councilmember Dan Kirkley. 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Grayson called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 

 
2. Public Comments. (Audio 1:49)  
 

There were no public comments. 
 

Consent Agenda  (Audio 1:55) 
 
Items 3-5 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
3. Consider minutes of June 9, 2020, City Council Meeting. 

 
4. Consider an appointment to the Historic Preservation Commission - Ailehs 

Gaines 
 
5. Consider a resolution authorizing an agreement releasing plat approval 

authority to the Village of Salado for the preliminary/final plat of Dunlap 
Subdivision, located in both Belton and Salado ETJs. 

 
Upon a motion for approval by Councilmember Holmes, and a second by 
Councilmember O’Banion, the Consent Agenda was unanimously approved upon a vote 
of 7-0. 
 
Planning and Zoning 
 
6. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Commercial 

Highway to Single Family - 2 District with a Conservation and Revitalization 
Overlay to allow both single family use and manufactured homes on Lots 5, 6, 
and 7, Block 1, Mann Addition, located at 2214, 2220, and 2224 S. Penelope 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 23, 2020 – Page 2  
 

  

Street, on the east side of Penelope Street, north of East Avenue W. (Audio 
2:58) 
 
Public Hearing: no one spoke for or against. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Kirkley and a second by Councilmember Holmes, 
2214, 2220 and 2224 S. Penelope Street were rezoned to Single Family-2 District 
with a Conservation and Revitalization Overlay to allow both single family use and 
manufactured homes upon a vote of 6-1 with Councilmember Leigh providing the 
dissenting vote. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-24 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM COMMERCIAL 
HIGHWAY DISTRICT TO SINGLE FAMLY TWO DISTRICT WITH A 
CONSERVATION AND REVITALIZATION OVERLAY ON APROXIMATELY 0.57 
ACRE, WITH DEVELOPMENT TO BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 2 
DESIGN STANDARDS. 
 

7. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Retail District and 
Planned Development (Agricultural) District for a Bed and Breakfast, to Multi-
Family District on approximately 6 acres located at 1011 W. 2nd Avenue, on 
the south side of 2nd Avenue, east of Colonial Crossing Apartments. (Audio: 
14:14) 

 
Public Hearing: Ray Severn, Developer, said he was available to answer questions. 
No one else spoke for or against. 

 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Leigh, and a second by Councilmember Kirkley, 
1011 W. 2nd Avenue was rezoned to Multi-Family District upon a vote of 7-0. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-25 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM RETAIL DISTRICT 
AND PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (AGRICULTURAL) DISTRICT FOR A BED AND 
BREAKFAST TO MULTI FAMLY DISTRICT ON APROXIMATELY 6.0 ACRES, 
WITH DEVELOPMENT TO BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREAS 4 AND 8 
DESIGN STANDARDS. 

 
FY 2021 Budget (Audio 21:03) 
 
8. Conduct a work session on the FY2021 budget for the following funds: 
 

A. Water and Sewer Fund 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 23, 2020 – Page 3  
 

  

B. Drainage Fund 
C. Belton Economic Development Corporation 

 
Director of Finance Mike Rodgers presented a preliminary draft of the FY2021 
budget as shown in Exhibit “A”. No action was required of the Council on this item. 
 

There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:05 p.m. 
 
 
 

_____________________________  
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



1

Presented by:
Michael Rodgers, CPA

Director of Finance

FY21 Budget Workshop
June 23, 2020

2

Funds To Be Discussed

• Water and Sewer Fund
• Drainage Fund
• BEDC



2

3

Water and Sewer Fund
Forecast for FY20

FY20 Year-End
Budget Estimate

Revenue 8,812,129$   8,790,974$   
Expenditures (8,811,520)    (8,987,387)    
Incr/(Decr) to Reserve 609$             (196,413)$     

4

Forecast for FY20

• Water and sewer revenue may exceed 
budget due to increasing consumption over 
the prior year

• Late payment and reconnection fees are 
under budget due to COVID-19 relief

• Setting aside $1,300,000 for necessary 
capital projects pushes expenditures over 
budget by $176,000
– Forthcoming budget amendment for FY20



3

5

Water and Sewer Fund
FY21 Statement of Fund Balance

 Projected Unrestricted Balance, Sept 30, 2020 5,962,275$   

Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:
FY21 Revenue 8,981,533     
FY21 Expenses (8,979,167)    

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance 2,366            

Projected Restricted Balance, Sept 30, 2021 5,964,641$   

Status of Water and Sewer
Fund Reserves

6

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

Unrestricted Reserve Balance Minimum Reserve Requirement



4

7

Budget to Budget Comparison
by Revenue Category 

Water and Sewer Fund
Revenue Category

FY20
Budget

FY21
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Water Revenue $ 4,926,686  $ 5,068,687 $   142,001

Sewer Revenue 3,226,869 3,319,370 92,501

Fees and Other Revenue 478,216 482,998 4,782

Miscellaneous 180,358 110,478 (69,880)

Total Revenue $ 8,812,129 $ 8,981,533 $   169,404

8

FY21 Water and Sewer Revenue
• Water and sewer revenue increases as both 

customer count and consumption volume 
continue to grow

• Fees and other revenue remain relatively flat 
from FY20

• Miscellaneous revenue falls due to lower 
interest earnings



5

9

FY21 Water and Sewer Fund 
Revenue

Water revenue $ 5,068,687
Sewer revenue 3,319,370
Fees and other 482,998
Miscellaneous 110,478
Total                      $ 8,981,533

Water, 57%

Sewer, 37%

Water Sewer Fees & other Miscellaneous

10

Utility Rates

• Rates from the 2014 study have been implemented
• No changes to water and sewer rates are proposed 

for FY21

Approved Water Rates
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Minimum Bill $15.00 $15.50 $16.00 $16.50 $17.00 $17.00
Per 1,000 Gallons $3.49 $3.49 $3.70 $3.70 $3.70 $3.70

Approved Wastewater Rates
2015 2106 2017 2018 2019 2020

Minimum Bill $12.00 $12.50 $13.00 $13.50 $14.00 $14.00
Per 1,000 Gallons $4.00 $4.50 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00



6

TML Survey of
Water and Sewer Charges

$49.07

$53.60

$54.15

$57.10

$62.33

$94.68

$0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $50.00 $60.00 $70.00 $80.00 $90.00 $100.00

Killeen

Temple

Harker Heights

Belton

Cedar Park

Leander

11

Water and Sewer Fund
Revenue from FY14 to FY21

FY Water Sewer Other

2014 $3,369,275 $1,888,871 $   313,978

2015 $3,780,854 $2,100,850 $   413,554

2016 $4,030,216 $2,468,700 $   420,284

2017 $4,557,170 $2,827,928 $   567,997

2018 $4,907,703 $3,087,121 $   697,601

2019 $4,725,361 $3,155,709 $   750,217

2020Projected $4,966,941 $3,254,285 $   569,748

2021Budget $5,068,687 $3,319,370 $   593,473

12

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

$9,000,000

$10,000,000

Water Sewer Other



7

13

Budget to Budget
Comparison by Division

Water and Sewer Fund
Division

FY20
Budget

FY21
Budget

Increase / 
(Decrease)

Utility Operations $      740,358 $       813,340 $          72,982   

Utility Finance 509,694 595,808 86,114

Water 3,023,327 3,451,064 427,737

Distribution 868,036 884,555 16,519

Treatment 1,053,394 981,852 (71,542)

Other Costs 2,616,711 2,252,548 (364,163)

Total Expenses $    8,811,520 $    8,979,167 $        167,647

14

FY21 Water and Sewer Fund
Expenditures by Category

Personnel             $ 1,882,602
Supplies                     120,912
Maintenance              224,930
Services         511,314
Debt 1,802,548
Other Costs 2,473,059
Capital Outlay 292,410
Transfers 1,671,392
Total                    $  8,979,167

Personnel, 
21%

Debt, 20%

Other 
Costs, 
28%

Transfers, 
19%

Personnel Supplies Maintenance
Services Debt Other Costs
Capital Outlay Transfers



8

15

Budget to Budget Comparison
by Expenditure Category

Water/Sewer Fund 
Expense Category

FY20
Budget

FY21
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Personnel $ 1,823,855 $ 1,882,602 $ 58,747 
Supplies 121,293 120,912 (381)
Maintenance 314,688 224,930 (89,758)
Services 329,187 511,314 182,127
Debt 2,110,311 1,802,548 (307,763)
Other Costs 2,149,881 2,473,059 323,178
Capital Outlay 631,240 292,410 (338,830)
Transfers 1,331,065 1,671,392 340,327
Totals $  8,811,520 $ 8,979,167 $ 167,647

16

Significant Changes
Personnel Category

• 60% of the Assistant Director of Public Works 
position that was a mid-year hire FY20 has been 
allocated to the Water and Sewer Fund

• A portion of the Public Information Officer 
position has been allocated to the Water and 
Sewer Fund

• Health insurance premiums rise by 7%



9

17

Significant Changes
Supplies Category

• Lower fuel costs provide savings to 
purchase new radios and an inspection 
camera

18

Significant Changes
Maintenance Category

• Reclassifying building maintenance  and 
computer system maintenance costs into the 
internal service funds decreases this 
category by $81,000

• Consolidating vehicle maintenance costs 
into the Fleet Division within the General 
Fund reduces this category by $15,000



10

19

Significant Changes
Services Category

• The cost allocation to the W/S Fund for 
building maintenance services is $69,000

• The cost allocation to the W/S Fund for 
information technology services is $161,000

• Payment processing fees increase by 
$60,000 as the City may absorb these costs 
for a full year

20

Significant Changes
Services Category

• Twenty-five percent of engineering 
consultant costs will be allocated to the 
Drainage Fund instead of the Water and 
Sewer Fund in FY21

• Consulting expenses fall by $37,000 as the 
pump and lift station generator design 
project was completed during FY20



11

21

Significant Changes
Debt Category

• Anticipated debt service reflects a possible 
bond issuance for the North Belton Elevated 
Storage Tank project

Bond Issuance Description Outstanding
Amount

Certificates of Obligation, Series 2002 $       695,000
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2008 $         89,100
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015 $    6,800,000
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2016 $    9,095,000
G.O. Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 $       855,000
Revenue-Supported Debt Outstanding $  17,534,100

Annual Debt Service Payments 
on Revenue-Supported Debt

22

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

$1,800,000

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036

Interest Principal



12

23

Significant Changes
Other Costs Category

• Expenses for water purchases increase by
– $120,000 for three months of payments on bonds that 

will be issued by BCWCID #1 to improve the pumping 
and transmission facilities of the Belton Transmission 
System

– $75,000 due to a 5¢/1,000 gallon price increase for 
treated water

• WWTP operation costs grow from $614,810 to 
$746,226 due to capital investment at the 
treatment plant and Belton’s main lift station

24

Significant Changes
Capital Outlay Category

• Capital Outlay for FY21 includes
Description Budget
Trimble unit GPS $    9,500
Trench and shoring equipment $    9,510
Two dump trailers $  11,000
Vac-truck dump station $  42,000
Vac-truck dump station cover $  25,000
Rock bucket for excavator $    5,400
Wash bay $  20,000
Water meters $170,000
Total $292,410



13

25

Significant Changes
Transfers Category

• The transfer to capital projects increases to 
fund several projects, including
– E Avenue S water line
– N East / E 5th Avenue water line
– North Belton elevated storage tank or 

alternatives

Drainage Fund

26



14

27

Drainage Fund
Forecast for FY20

FY20 Year-End
Budget Estimate

Revenue 539,472$      516,027$      
Expenditures (570,812)       (530,282)       
Incr/(Decr) to Reserve (31,340)$       (14,255)$       

28

Forecast for FY20

• Revenue may not increase by the 7.5% that 
was expected when the FY20 budget was 
adopted

• Expenses are under budget due to salary 
savings and lower than anticipated 
maintenance costs



15

29

Drainage Fund
FY21 Statement of Fund Balance

 Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2020 220,200$      

Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:
FY21 Revenue 548,061        
FY21 Expenditures (531,260)      

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance 16,801          

Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2021 237,001$      

30

Budget to Budget Comparison
by Revenue Category 

Drainage Fund
Revenue Category

FY20
Budget

FY21
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Storm Drainage Fees $533,593 $546,121 $12,528

Interest Income 5,879 1,940 (3,939)

Total Revenue $539,472 $548,061 $8,589



16

31

FY21 Drainage Fund Revenue

• No change to the City’s drainage fee is 
proposed for FY21

• Storm drainage fee revenue increases by six 
percent over the year-end estimate for FY20 
as the customer count continues to grow

• Interest income falls due to lower yields on 
investments

Drainage Fee Comparison

32

 $‐  $1.00  $2.00  $3.00  $4.00  $5.00  $6.00  $7.00  $8.00

Belton

Cove

Georgetown

Harker Heights

Killeen

Temple

Residential Rate

 $‐  $50.00  $100.00  $150.00  $200.00  $250.00

Belton

Cove

Georgetown

Harker Heights

Killeen

Temple

Non‐residential rate for 100,000 SF



17

Drainage Fund
Revenue from FY14 to FY21
FY Drainage Fees

2014 $367,956

2015 $360,021

2016 $377,990

2017 $389,230

2018 $452,742

2019 $492,638

2020Projected $513,031

2021Budget $546,121

33

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

Drainage Fees

34

Budget to Budget Comparison
by Expenditure Category

Drainage Fund 
Expense Category

FY20
Budget

FY21
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Personnel $ 250,108 $ 261,427 $ 11,319 
Supplies 19,430 16,280 (3,150)
Maintenance 48,890 19,160 (29,730)
Services 10,747 30,243 19,496
Debt 25,607 25,790 183
Transfers 216,030 178,360 (37,670)
Totals $  570,812 $ 531,260 $ (39,552)



18

35

Significant Changes
Personnel and Supplies Categories

• 20% of the Assistant Director of Public Works 
position that was a mid-year hire in FY20 has 
been allocated to the Drainage Fund

• Health insurance premiums rise by 7%

• Expenditures for supplies decline after purchasing 
a radio in FY20

36

Significant Changes
Maintenance Category

• Drainage facilities maintenance is reduced by 
$14,000 after a concrete drainage channel on 2nd

Avenue was constructed during FY20

• Vehicle maintenance expenses are transferred into 
the Fleet Maintenance Division of the General 
Fund in FY21



19

37

Significant Changes
Services and Debt Categories

• Twenty-five percent of engineering consultant 
costs will be allocated to the Drainage Fund 
instead of the Water and Sewer Fund

• Principal and interest payments remain flat
• The outstanding principal balance on Certificates 

of Obligation, Series 2008 will be $165,825 as of 
October 1, 2020

Annual Debt Service Payments 
on Revenue-Supported Debt

38

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Interest Principal



20

39

Significant Changes
Transfers Category

• $150,000 will be transferred into the Drainage 
Capital Projects Fund for the Blair and 4th

drainage project that is currently scheduled for 
2023

• $28,360 will be transferred into the Drainage 
Capital Equipment Fund for future replacement of 
the street sweeper

Belton Economic
Development Corporation

40



21

41

BEDC Operating Fund
Forecast for FY20

FY20 Year-End
Budget Estimate

Revenue 1,949,760$   1,741,414$   
Expenditures (1,014,489)    (855,595)       
Incr/(Decr) to Reserve 935,271$      885,819$      

42

Forecast for FY20

• A sharp drop in sales taxes as a result of 
COVID-19 creates a revenue deficit of 
approximately $200,000

• Expenditures are under budget due to 
savings in business park maintenance, 
marketing, training, and special services



22

43

BEDC Operating Fund
FY21 Statement of Fund Balance

 Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2020 4,664,615$   

Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:
FY21 Revenue 1,702,199     
FY21 Expenditures (474,143)      

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance 1,228,056     

Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2021 5,892,671$   

44

Budget to Budget Comparison
by Revenue Category 

BEDC Operating Fund
Revenue Category

FY20
Budget

FY21
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Sales Tax $   1,881,560 $   1,659,081 $   (222,479)   

Rental Income 43,200 27,600 (15,600)

Other Revenue 0 7,268 7,268

Interest Income 25,000 8,250 (16,750)

Total Revenue $   1,949,760 $   1,702,199 $   (247,561)   



23

FY 21 BEDC Operating Fund
Revenue

• Sales tax revenue falls by $222,000 (12%) when 
compared to the FY20 Annual Budget due to 
COVID-related closures and economic slowdown

• Rental income falls while other revenue increases 
due to the sale of property to Perro Grande 
Commercial LLC

• The decline in interest income reflects lower 
yields from investments

45

46

Budget to Budget Comparison
by Expenditure Category

BEDC Operating 
Fund Expenditure 

Category

FY20
Budget

FY21
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Personnel $ 205,373 $ 200,468 $     (4,905)         
Supplies 5,800 7,200 1,400
Maintenance 72,785 71,785 (1,000)
Services 230,531 144,690 (85,841)
Capital Outlay 335,000 50,000 (285,000)
Transfers 0 0 0
Totals $   849,489 $   474,143 $  (375,346)



24

FY 21 BEDC Operating Fund
Expenditures

• The budget for personnel falls in FY21 as no pay 
plan changes have been included

• Reductions to the services category reflect budget 
cuts to marketing, training/travel, and special 
services

• Capital outlay falls after property acquisitions 
were completed during FY20

47

BEDC Capital Projects Fund
Balance Sheet

48



25

BEDC Capital Projects Fund
Future Commitments

49

BEDC Incentives Fund

50

• The cash balance in the BEDC Incentives 
Fund is just over $1,800,000

• This money is available to pay incentives 
that have been offered by BEDC, including 
CGI and Belltec



26

51

In Summary
• Water/Sewer Fund and Drainage Fund revenue 

continues to grow as more people utilize City 
services

• No rate increases are planned for water, sewer or 
drainage

• Both utility funds will set aside funds for future 
capital projects

• A lean budget has been proposed for BEDC to 
prepare for the impact of COVID-19

Upcoming Budget Calendar
Meeting Date Budget Item to be Presented

July 14 -Discuss vehicle and equipment replacement funds
-Prioritize items that were deferred or eliminated for FY21

July 28
-Present the FY21 Proposed Annual Budget to City Council
-Call date for public hearing on the proposed budget
-Presentation of fee schedule changes

August 4
(Special)

-Propose a property tax rate
-Call date for public hearing on the property tax rate

August 11 -Present the Strategic Plan
-Discuss the 2021-2025 Capital Improvements Program

September 8
-Hold public hearings on budget and property tax rate
-Receive public input on the Strategic Plan
-Adopt fee schedule

September 15
(Special) -Adopt Strategic Plan, FY21 Annual Budget, and tax rate

52



27

Questions/Comments?

53



7/8/2020

1

BEDC
Budget & 
Annual Update
JUNE  23,  2020

BEDC Budget FY 2021

PROPOSED BUDGET 
OVERVIEW

ANNUAL UPDATE
2020

PROPOSED PROJECTS 
2021 



7/8/2020

2

Notes:

Sales Tax – projections result of Covid‐19

Rental Income – Decrease reflects Belco
lease transfer to Perro Grande due to sale 
of property.

Other Revenues – interest from financing 
land sale.

Interest Income – other investments, 
interest rates down.

Notes:

Supplies – projections based on new office 
location.  

Maintenance – small decrease due to sale 
of property.

Services –
• Marketing ‐ website update in 2020 

and GCT activities and travel reduced in 
2021 due to COVID‐19.

• COG lease eliminated.
• Workforce development/talent 

attraction reduced/eliminated due to 
COVID‐19.

Capital Outlay ‐ Office renovations and 
land purchase in 2020.



7/8/2020

3

• Completed Wage and Benefits 

Study

• Sale of Property at Rockwool 

for Recycling Facility

• BEDC office renovations 

underway

• 3 real estate transactions 

pending

• US Capital 50,000 sf expansion

• Ongoing design and easement 

acquisition for infrastructure 

projects valued at $5.1 million.

• East Street Sidewalk 

Renovation Complete

Annual Update

2021 BEDC Projects

• Finalize design and construct infrastructure projects

• I‐35 waterline
• I‐14 water & wastewater line
• Avenue D extension

• Board Workshop to identify and prioritize future projects



City Council Agenda Item 
July 14, 2020 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #4 
 
Consider a resolution finding no objection to a petition from the Salado Volunteer Fire 
Department for the creation of Bell County Emergency Services District No. 1 which 
includes an area in Belton’s ETJ. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Fire - Jon Fontenot, Fire Chief 
 
Background 
 
An emergency services district (ESD) is a political subdivision established pursuant to 
Chapter 775 of the Texas Health and Safety Code. An ESD generally supports or provides 
local emergency services, which can include emergency medical services and fire 
protection services. 
 
An ESD has the ability to impose both a sales and a property tax to support or provide 
emergency services within the district. An ESD’s sales tax rate can range from anywhere 
between one-eighth of one percent to two percent. An ESD’s property tax, meanwhile, may 
not exceed ten cents per $100 of valuation.  
 
The Salado Volunteer Fire Department has petitioned the Bell County Commissioners Court 
in an effort to create an ESD whose area includes Salado VFD’s current response district. 
Because a portion of their response district lies within the ETJ of Belton, the territory in 
question may not be included in the ESD unless the Belton City Council gives its written 
consent on or before the 60th day after the date the request is received.  
 
If the City Council consents to the creation of the ESD within territory located in the ETJ, 
several steps—including an election ordered by the Bell County Commissioner’s Court—
must still take place in order for the ESD to be created. 
 
If the City Council does not approve the request, a majority of the qualified voters and the 
owners of 50 percent of the property in the ETJ that would have been included in the ESD 
may petition the City Council to make the emergency services available. The petition must 
be submitted not later than the 90th day after the date the City Council received the initial 
request. If the City Council refuses or fails to act on the petition within six months after the 
petition is received, the Council’s refusal or failure to act constitutes consent for the territory 
to be included in the district. 
 
 
 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 14, 2020 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
If the City of Belton annexes the territory from the ESD, the City must compensate the ESD 
immediately after annexation in an amount equal to the annexed territory’s pro rata share of 
the ESD’s bonded and other indebtedness. In addition, at the ESD’s request, the City must 
purchase from the ESD, at fair market value, any real or personal property used to provide 
emergency services in the annexed territory.  
. 
Amount: None at this time 
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No   Capital Project Funds 
 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed     
 
Funding Source(s):   
 
Recommendation 
 
Because the development of the Salado ESD does not change current emergency service 
delivery boundaries, and there is no initial financial impact to the City of Belton, Staff 
recommends the Council approve a resolution finding no object to the Salado Volunteer Fire 
Department’s effort to establish an Emergency Service District which contains a small 
portion of the City of Belton’s ETJ. 
 
Attachments 
 
Salado VFD Request for ESD 
TML Q&A on ESD 
Resolution 



EXHIBIT "A"











































Legal Q&A 
By Bill Longley 
TML Legislative Counsel 
 
What is an emergency services district? 
 
An emergency services district (ESD) is a political subdivision established pursuant to Chapter 
775 of the Texas Health and Safety Code. An ESD generally supports or provides local 
emergency services, which can include emergency medical services and fire protection services.  
 
An ESD has the ability to impose both a sales and use tax and a property tax to support or 
provide emergency services within the district. See TEX. HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE §§ 775.074, 
775.0751. An ESD’s sales and use tax rate can range from anywhere between one-eighth of one 
percent to two percent. Id. § 775.0751(a). An ESD’s property tax, meanwhile, may not exceed 
ten cents per $100 of valuation. See TEX. CONST. art. III, §. 48-e.  
 
Can an ESD be created in a city’s territorial limits or extraterritorial jurisdiction without 
city consent? 
 
No. Before an ESD may be created that contains territory in a city’s limits or extraterritorial 
jurisdiction (ETJ), the proponents of the ESD must submit a written request to the city council to 
include the territory in the ESD. TEX. HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE § 775.014(a). The territory in 
question may not be included in the ESD unless the city council gives its written consent on or 
before the 60th day after the date the request is received. Id. 
 
If the city council does not approve the request, a majority of the qualified voters and the owners 
of 50 percent of the property in the city limits or ETJ that would have been included in the ESD 
may petition the city council to make the emergency services available. Id. § 775.014(b).  The 
petition must be submitted not later than the 90th day after the date the city council received the 
initial request. Id. If the city council refuses or fails to act on the petition within six months after 
the petition is received, the council’s refusal or failure to act constitutes consent for the territory 
to be included in the district. Id. § 775.014(c).  
 
If the city council consents to the creation of the ESD within territory located in the city limits or 
ETJ, or if consent is inferred due to inaction on the petition, several steps—including an election 
ordered by the county commissioners court—must still take place in order for the ESD to be 
created.    
 
Once a city consents to having its territory included in an ESD, can the city later remove 
the city territory from the ESD? 
 
Likely not. There is no clear authority in Chapter 775 of the Health and Safety Code for a city to 
remove itself or a portion of its territory from an ESD after it initially consented to the inclusion 
of its territorial or extraterritorial jurisdiction when the ESD was formed.  
 
When a city annexes, can it remove territory from the jurisdiction of an ESD? 



 
Yes, but only if certain conditions are met. A city that annexes territory that is included in an 
ESD may remove the territory from the ESD if the city completes all procedures necessary to 
annex territory in the district and if the city intends to become the sole provider of emergency 
services to the annexed territory by the use of city personnel or by some method other than by 
use of the ESD. Id. § 775.022(a). The city must send written notice by certified mail to the 
secretary of the ESD board of directors notifying the ESD of the annexation and intent to provide 
emergency services. Id. Upon receipt of the notice, the ESD board must immediately change its 
records to show that the territory has been disannexed from the ESD and shall cease to provide 
further services to the residents in the newly-annexed area. Id.   
 
A city that removes annexed territory from an ESD must compensate the ESD immediately after 
annexation in an amount equal to the annexed territory’s pro rata share of the ESD’s bonded and 
other indebtedness. Id. § 775.022(b). In addition, at the ESD’s request, a city that removes 
annexed territory from an ESD must purchase from the ESD at fair market value any real or 
personal property used to provide emergency services in the annexed territory. Id. § 775.022(d).  
  
Can an ESD expand its boundaries into the city limits or a city’s ETJ without city council 
approval? 
 
This issue has been the source of some debate amongst ESDs and cities in recent years. Texas 
Health and Safety Code Section 775.051 contains the legal guidelines for expansion of ESD 
territory. In short, the statute provides that at least 50 percent of the qualified voters who own 
taxable real property in a defined area may petition the ESD board of directors to hold an 
election on the question of including the defined area in the ESD. Id. § 775.051. Section 775.051 
of the Health and Safety Code makes no specific mention of the ESD’s need to receive city 
council approval when expanding its territory to include an area located in a city’s corporate 
limits or ETJ. That being said, an ESD must get council approval when initially creating an ESD 
within the corporate limits or ETJ of a city (as detailed above), so some cities argue that city 
council approval should similarly be sought when expanding an ESD into city territory.  
 
In 2013, legislation was filed to bring some clarity to the issue. H.B. 1798 would have provided 
that an ESD must follow essentially the same procedure for receiving city council approval when 
it expands its jurisdiction as it follows when the ESD is initially created. H.B. 1798 did not pass, 
so the statute remains silent on the question of city council approval for expansion of the ESD 
into city territory.    
 
When a city annexes territory also served by an ESD, does the city’s sales and use tax apply 
in the newly annexed area? 
 
The answer to this question depends on the ESD’s sales and use tax rate in the area annexed by 
the city. Section 321.102 of the Texas Tax Code governs the application of the city sales and use 
tax in the event of a change in a city’s boundaries. With some limited exceptions, that section 
provides that a city sales tax displaces the sales tax of another entity (like an ESD) that 
previously levied a tax within the annexed territory. TEX. TAX CODE § 321.102(e). In the event of 
annexation, the ESD’s tax in the annexed area is automatically reduced to an amount which, 



when added to the municipal sales tax, does not exceed the local cap of two percent. Id. In many 
cases this reduces the ESD’s tax to zero, but if the annexing city had a tax rate of less than two 
percent the ESD is allowed to continue to levy whatever portion of its tax that would not exceed 
two percent in combination with the city tax.  
 
However, when the sales tax of an ESD is reduced as a result of city annexation, the ESD is kept 
whole by the comptroller’s deduction of a corresponding amount from the sales and use tax of 
the annexing city. Id. § 321.102(f). The deducted amount is then paid to the ESD. Id. This is the 
provision that ESDs rely on to continue to obtain the sales and use tax revenue they were 
receiving prior to the city annexation. For example, under current law, if both a city and an ESD 
have a sales tax of two percent, the comptroller would withhold two percent from the city and 
pay that amount to the ESD. As a result, the city would not be able to keep any sales tax revenue 
in the newly annexed area. More commonly, a city will collect some sales and use taxes in the 
newly-annexed area, but not the entire amount that would otherwise be collected if there was not 
an overlapping ESD serving the area.   
 
What tools are available for cities and ESD’s to share sales tax revenue in a newly-annexed 
area that is also served by the ESD? 
 
The inability of some cities to collect some or all of their sales and use taxes in newly-annexed 
territory due to the imposition of an ESD sales and use tax brought about legislation in 2013 that 
helped address how sales and use taxes are divided between cities and ESDs. The legislature 
passed H.B. 3159, which authorizes a city and ESD to work together and enter into a written 
agreement on how to allocate the revenue from the sales and use taxes imposed in the annexed 
area. See TEX. HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE § 775.0754. Cities cannot prohibit an ESD from 
collecting its sales and use taxes in a newly-annexed area, and also cannot require an ESD to 
enter into an agreement splitting sales and use tax revenue with the city. Nevertheless, since 
taking effect in 2013, cities and ESDs have used the new law to reach some consensus on how 
sales and use tax revenue is to be divided in newly-annexed city territory that is also served by an 
ESD.   



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-21-R 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
FINDING NO OBJECTION TO THE CREATION OF BELL COUNTY 
EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Belton has received the petition 
attached as Exhibit “A”, and a letter requesting the City’s consent to the creation 
of an emergency services district (“District”) proposed to be known as Bell County 
Emergency Services District No. 1; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has no objection to the creation of the District and 
hereby provides its written consent. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELTON, TEXAS, that the City has no objection to the creation of the District, 
proposed to be known as Bell County Emergency Services District No. 1, and to 
the inclusion of the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City within the boundaries of 
the District as more particularly described in the petition attached as Exhibit A. This 
consent is valid for a period of twelve months from the date of its adoption. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 14TH DAY OF JULY, 2020 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Marion Grayson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 14, 2020 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #5 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with the 
CTCOG Counties and the Cities of Temple, Killeen, Copperas Cove and Harker Heights to 
develop Transit Alternatives. 
     
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
 
Summary Information 
 
Hill Country Transit District currently operates an urban and rural transit system serving nine 
counties and two urban areas with fixed route and demand-response services. Federal and 
State grants, as well as contributions from local cities including Belton and Bell County, fund 
these services in our area. Councilmember Dan Kirkley is Belton’s representative on the 
Board, and Bell County Judge David Blackburn is the current Chair. 
 
Long-term trends have suggested an ever-increasing local contribution needed to support 
the system as currently structured. Killeen and Temple recently had to reduce fixed route 
services and cut routes to fund their local share. The pending retirement of Executive 
Director, Carole Warlick, led to a discussion about future transit services, and whether a 
fresh analysis had merit before selecting a replacement. Initially the Study was led by 
Temple and Killeen, but the other cities in our Region, and many of the rural counties have 
joined the effort. 
 
Two firms were interviewed – Alliance Transportation Group and Nancy Edmonson. The 
consensus selection was Nancy Edmonson, and a fee of $32,500 was negotiated, with 
$20,000 for the urban cities and Bell County (Copperas Cove, Killeen, Temple, Harker 
Heights, and Belton - $3,333 each) and $12,500 for the rural counties. A Scope of Services 
for the Study was developed by Temple and will include these 5 tasks: 
 

1. Background and Goal Setting, with extensive Stakeholder meetings 
2. Peer Review and System Efficiency – Finance and Operations 
3. Case Study Review exploring Alternative Approaches to Transit Delivery 
4. Alternative Assessment of Transit Delivery 
5. Recommendations 

 
The project timeframe is four months. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Amount: $3,333.00 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 14, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Budgeted:   Yes    No  
 
The FY ’20 budget allocated $31,912 for HOP Transit Services, which were paid by the City 
and reimbursed to us by the HOP from the Federal CARES Act.  This would be an 
appropriate funding source. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend authorizing the City Manager to execute Interlocal Agreement. 
 
Attachments 
 
Scope of Services 



Bell County Transit Provision Alternatives 

Scope of Services 

November 25, 2019 

I 

Bell County and the Cities of Temple and Killeen are interested in researching options for the 

most efficient provision of transit service in their jurisdictions. The County and Cities are 

currently served by Hill Country Transit District, an urban and rural transit district authorized by 

the Texas Transportation Code. The District serves nine counties and two urban areas with 

dem~nd-response and fixed-route services. The District is funded predominantly with State and 

Federal grants, but Bell County, Temple, and Killeen also provide direct funding in support of 

the services in the urban areas. 

Nancy R. Edmonson would execute the following scope of work to assist the Count and City 

leaders in determining the best way to fund and provide the transit services needed by their 

communities. 

Task 1: Background and Goal Setting 

This task would include background research on the history of the transit operations in the 

region, the current transit provider (the District}, and current funding sources. It would include 

a site visit to the District's headquarters in San Saba and operations facility in Belton to assess 

the current operations. The budget assumes the site visit would require one day. 

This task would also include articulating the goals for transit and transit provision by the three 

contracting parties (Bell County, Temple, and Killeen) and the objectives by which success 

would be measured. The goals would be determined through direct meetings with stakeholders 

chosen by the County and Cities. These stakeholders could include staff and elected officials of 

the contracting parties. The budget assumes one day of meetings. 

Deliverable: 

Task 2: Peer Review 

Technical Memorandum 1: Transit History, Existing Conditions, and Goals 

for the Future 

In order to help the County and Cities determine whether it should adopt a new approach to 

providing transit in Bell County and its major cities, they need to know if the current urban 

transit service is being provided efficiently. A peer review will be conducted to provide context 

to that determination. The goal of the peer review is to help the client understand how the 

District performs in terms of finance and operations relative to other agencies in the region. 

Nancy R. Edmonson, Transportation Consulting Page 1 



In consultation with the client, six to eight transit agencies similar to the District in size, 

geography, and service type will be chosen for the review. Where possible, publ ished data from 

the National Transit Database (NTD) and TxDOT reports for the most recent available year will 

be used to calculate various comparative performance measures. These measures will include 

cost-efficiency (e.g., cost per vehicle hour), service effectiveness (e.g., passengers per revenue 

hour), and cost-effectiveness (e.g., operating cost per passenger, fare recovery ratio) indicators. 

This task and the conclusions from it will be data-driven. 

Deliverable : Technical Memorandum 2: Peer Review 

Task 3: Case Studies 

Whereas Task 2 will assess how efficiently the District provides service, Task 3 will present a set 

of three to four case studies to demonstrate different approaches to providing urban transit 

service in a mixed urban and rural county. Possible models include service operated by 

counties, service provided by cities, and service procured jointly for multiple cities through 

inter-local agreements. The transit providers profiled in this task may be drawn from the peers 

in Task 2, but others may be chosen if they better illustrate different service models, even if 

they differ in size or demography from Bell County. The focus here will be less data-driven and 

more qualitative, including a discussion of the pros and cons of the various organizational 

models and their applicability in Bell County. 

Deliverable: Technical Memorandum 3: Case Studies 

Task 4: Service Provision Alternatives Assessment 

Based on the data gathered in Task 1 through Task 3, three to four service provision 

alternatives will be chosen for detailed analysis. The alternatives will include the current model 

(service provided by The District) . The alternatives would be assessed based on how well they 

achieve the goals established in Task 1, as well as factors such total local investment, level of 

local control, cost-effectiveness, and complexity. 

Deliverable : Technical Memorandum 4: Service Provision Alternatives Assessment 

Task 5: Recommendations 

Based on the results of Task 4, recommendations will be made on the best approach for 

providing transit in the County and Cities in a draft final report. Depending on the alternative 

chosen, next steps for its implementation will be outlined . Nancy R. Edmonson will present the 

Nancy R. Edmonson, Transportation Consulting Page 2 



draft recommendations to representatives of the County and Cities and, based on their 

comments, create the final report. 

Deliverable: Final Report 

Nancy R. Edmonson, Transportation Consulting Page 3 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN  

THE CITIES OF TEMPLE, BELTON, COPPERAS COVE, HARKER HEIGHTS, AND 
KILLEEN AND THE COUNTIES OF BELL, CORYELL, HAMILTON, LAMPASAS, LLANO, 

MASON, MILAM, MILLS AND SAN SABA  
TO CONDUCT A TRANSIT STUDY AND DEVELOP REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 

ALTERNATIVES 
 
This Interlocal Agreement (“the Agreement”), is entered into this ___day of ____________, 2020, 
between the City of Temple (“Temple”), the City of Belton (“Belton”), the City of Copperas Cove 
(“Copperas Cove”), the City of Harker Heights (“Harker Heights”), the City of Killeen (“Killeen”), 
and the County of Bell (“Bell”), also referred to herein as the ‘Urban Area Entities’ to conduct a 
regional transit study and provide an assessment. 
 
The County of Coryell (“Coryell”), the County of Hamilton (“Hamilton”), the County of Lampasas 
(“Lampasas”) the County of Llano (“Llano”), the County of Mason (“Mason”), the County of Milam 
(“Milam”), the County of Mill (“Mills”), and the County of San Saba (“San Saba”), referred to herein 
as the ‘Rural Counties’ may also elect to participate as outlined herein.  
 
Temple, Belton, Copperas Cove, Harker Heights, Killeen, Bell, Coryell, Hamilton, Lampasas, 
Llano, Mason, Milam, Mills and San Saba may hereinafter be referred to individually as the “Party” 
and/or collectively as the “Parties.”  
 

WHEREAS, the Parties are local governmental entities and subdivisions of the State of 
Texas, each with their own governing bodies; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties to this Agreement are currently served by the Hill Country Transit 

District, an urban and rural transit district authorized by the Texas Transportation Code, and  
desire to enter into an interlocal agreement to provide governmental planning functions, 
specifically to obtain consulting services to research options for the most efficient provision of 
transit service in their respective jurisdictions;  

 
WHEREAS, the Parties designate Temple as the lead contracting agency to contract with 

a consultant to conduct a regional transit study and develop transportation alternatives to aid 
county and city leaders in regional planning efforts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Texas Government Code, Chapter 791, the “Interlocal Cooperation Act,” 

authorizes local governmental entities to enter into interlocal contracts for governmental purposes 
including planning and other governmental functions in which the contracting parties are mutually 
interested; and 

 
WHEREAS, the governing bodies of the Parties to this Agreement have considered this 

Interlocal Agreement, and deem it to be in the best interest of the citizens of each respective 
Party; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties mutually agree to the terms of this Interlocal Agreement 

as set forth below. 
I. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
A. Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is to coordinate and fund a transit study in order 

to develop regional transportation alternatives to assist county and city leaders in 



 

determining the best way to fund and provide transit services in their respective 
communities. The Parties will obtain the services of a transportation consultant to perform 
a regional transit study, to evaluate the region’s transportation needs and existing transit 
infrastructure and modalities, and identify alternatives and recommendations for future 
transportation planning, including funding mechanisms. The selected consultant will 
evaluate the existing transit system and its background, and articulate the goals for the 
regions transit services moving forward, provide peer review comparables and case 
studies, develop a technical memorandum detailing service provision alternative 
assessments and provide a recommendation on the best approach for regional transit in 
a final report, with next steps for implementation. 
 

B. Effective Date; Termination; Amendment. This Agreement will become effective upon 
execution by the Parties and will remain in full force and effect until canceled by mutual 
agreement of the Parties as evidenced in writing, or upon thirty (30) days prior written 
notice of any Party of said Party’s intent to terminate. If any Party terminates its 
participation in this Agreement, this Agreement will remain in full force and effect as to the 
remaining Parties. This Agreement may be reviewed and revised from time to time as 
required, upon the mutual agreement of the Parties, and as evidenced in writing. 
 

C. Apportionment of Costs:  
 
1. Estimated Cost. The proposed cost for the services under this Agreement will be a not 

to exceed amount of $32,500, which consists of a “base study” totaling $20,000 and 
remaining project scope costs of $12,500.  

2. Urban Area Entities. The Urban Area Entities will be defined in this Agreement as 
Temple, Belton, Copperas Cove, Harker Heights, Killeen and Bell County.  The Urban 
Area Entities will divide the base study costs of $20,000 evenly between the 6 entities, 
resulting in an apportionment to each entity of $3,333.  

3. Rural Counties. The Rural Counties will be defined in this Agreement as the counties 
of Coryell, Hamilton, Lampasas, Llano, Mason, Milam, Mills and San Saba. The Rural 
Counties will elect to participate in this Agreement by notifying Temple by July 31, 
2020 of the county’s decision to participate.  If Temple has not heard from a Rural 
County regarding participation on or before July 31, 2020, it will be presumed that that 
county has elected not to participate. After determining which of the Rural Counties 
will be participating in this Agreement, the remaining project scope costs of $12,500 
will be apportioned evenly between the participating Rural Counties. If none of the 
Rural Counties elects to participate, the remaining $12,500 in project scope costs will 
be removed from the project and only the base study will be conducted. 

4. Payment of Apportioned Costs. Each Party’s respective portion of the costs must be 
paid by each Party as a lump sum up front and must be remitted to Temple within 30 
days of execution of this Agreement.   

5. Termination or Withdrawal of a Party. Should any Party terminate its participation in 
this Agreement, that Party’s portion of the apportioned costs will be reallocated among 
the remaining Parties, determined on the classification of the Party as set forth above. 

6. Overpayments. Any overpayment for the consultant’s services which are not utilized 
will be apportioned evenly among the participating Parties in the respective allocated 
category. and reimbursed to each Party.  

 
D. Additional Services; Costs. Prior written approval of all Parties will be obtained if the cost 

is to exceed the agreed upon amount for consultant’s services. The cost for any additional 
services will be first be allocated towards either the Urban Area Entities, Rural Counties, 



 

or both and then apportioned evenly among the participating Parties in the respective 
allocate category. Each Party will submit its portion of the additional costs to Temple within 
30 days of written approval of the additional costs.  
 

E. Current Revenues. Pursuant to Texas Government Code § 791.011(d)(3), each Party 
paying for the performance of governmental functions or services must make those 
payments from current revenues available to the paying Party. 
 

F. Designation of lead agency. Temple will serve as the lead contracting agency under this 
Agreement and will contract with the consultant for the services required hereunder. 
Temple will also serve as the lead point of contact for this Interlocal Agreement.  

 
F.  Implementation.  The city manager, county judge, or respective authorized county 

commissioner of each Party to this Agreement is authorized and directed to meet and draft 
any detailed plans to effectively implement this Agreement, or subsequent transportation 
or transit plans, or to execute any professional services agreements necessary to obtain 
the consulting services necessary under this Agreement.   

 
G.  Remedy. The sole remedy for failure to provide aid under this Agreement or for breach of 

this Agreement is termination. 
 

II. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

A. Notice. All notice to be provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be made to the following: 
 

City of Temple 
Brynn Myers, City Manager 
2 North Main Street, Ste. 306 
Temple, Texas 76501 
 
City of Belton 

  Sam Listi, City Manager  
  333 Water Street 
  P.O. Box 120 
  Belton, Texas 76513 
 
  City of Copperas Cove 
  Ryan Haverlah, City Manager 
  914 S. Main St., Ste. D 
  Copperas Cove, Texas 76522 
 
  City of Harker Heights 
  David Mitchell, City Manager 
  305 Miller’s Crossing  
  Harker Heights, Texas 76548 
 
  City of Killeen 
  Kent Cagle, City Manager 
  101 North College Street 
  Killeen, Texas 76541 
 



 

 
  County of Bell 
  David Blackburn, County Judge 
  101 E. Central Avenue 
  P.O. Box 768  
  Belton, Texas 76513 
 
  County of Coryell 
  Roger Miller, County Judge 
  Coryell County Main Street Annex  
  800 East Main Street, Ste. A 
  Gatesville, Texas 76528 
 
  County of Hamilton 
  W. Mark Tynes, County Judge 
  102 North Rice, Ste. 124 
  Hamilton, Texas 76531 
 
  County of Lampasas 
  Randall Hoyer, County Judge 
  501 East 4th Street, Ste. 103 
  Lampasas, Texas 76550 
 

County of Llano 
  Peter Jones, County Commissioner, Precinct 1 
  801 Ford Street, Room 101 
  Llano, Texas 78643 
 
  County of Mason 
  Jerry Bearden, County Judge 
  201 Ft. McKavitt  
  P.O. Box 1726  
  Mason, Texas 76856 
 
  County of Milam 
  Steve Young, County Judge 
  102 South Fannin Avenue 
  Cameron, Texas 76520 

 
County of Mills 

  Ed Smith, County Judge 
  1011 4th Street 
  P.O. Box 483  
  Goldthwaite, Texas 76844 
 
  County of San Saba 
  Byron Theodosis, County Judge 
  500 E. Wallace Street 
  San Saba, Texas 76877 
   



 

B. Compliance. The Parties shall comply with all Federal, State, and city statutes, 
ordinances, and regulations applicable to the performance of services under this 
Agreement.  

 
C. Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement and understanding of 

the Parties hereto, and there are no other agreements, understandings, oral or written, 
with reference to the subject matter contained herein that are not merged here or 
superseded by this Agreement.  
 

D. Amendments. No alteration, change, modification, or amendment to the terms of this 
Agreement will be valid or effective unless made in writing and signed by all Parties hereto 
and approved by appropriate action of the governing body of each Party.  
 

E. No waiver.  No waiver of performance by any Party shall be construed as or operate as a 
waiver for any subsequent default of any terms, conditions, or covenants of this 
Agreement.  
 

F. Assignment. No Party shall assign any or all of its rights, privileges, or duties under this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the governing bodies of the Parties. 
 

G. Status of Governmental Entities. The Parties will in no way operate as an agent of the 
other Party. Each Party shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of its own officers, 
directors, authorized agents, servants, and employees in connection with this Agreement.  
Each Party will at all times be legally responsible for its own personnel, officers, agents 
and/or equipment.  
 

H. Governmental Immunity. No Party to this Agreement waives any governmental immunity 
entitled to them by law, whether statutory or at common law, by virtue of entering into this 
Interlocal Agreement. All Parties expressly retain all such immunities afforded to them. 
 

I. Governing law and venue. In the event of any action arising under this Agreement, venue 
will be in Bell County, Texas or in the United States District Court for the Western District 
of Texas. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas.  
 

J. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions will not 
in any way be affected or impaired.  
 

K. Termination; Force Majeure. This Agreement may be terminated for any reason by any 
Party by providing thirty (30) days advanced written notice to the other Parties. No Party 
will be responsible for damages, nor expected to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement 
should an act of God or other unforeseen catastrophe, or other event beyond the 
reasonable control of the Party occur and cause such damage or prevent the performance 
of any obligation contained within this Agreement.  
 

III. EXECUTION 
 

This Agreement shall be executed by the duly authorized official(s) of each Party as expressed in 
approving resolution or order of the governing body of such Party. By execution of this Agreement, 
each Party warrants that its governing body has considered this Agreement and deems it in the 



 

best interest of the citizens of each respective governmental subdivision. This Agreement will first 
be executed by the 6 participating Urban Area Entities and will be automatically updated to include 
the Rural Counties as they elect to participate.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date indicated above. 
 
URBAN AREA ENTITIES: 
 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS     CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   _____________________________ 
BRYNN MYERS      SAM LISTI 
CITY MANAGER      CITY MANAGER 
 
Date: __________________________   Date: ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
JANA LEWELLEN       AMY CASEY 
CITY SECRETARY      CITY SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE     CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
 
 
CITY OF COPPERAS COVE, TEXAS CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, 

TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   _____________________________ 
RYAN HAVERLAH      DAVID MITCHELL 
CITY MANAGER      CITY MANAGER 
 
Date: __________________________   Date: ________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
LISA WILSON       JULIETTE HELSHAM  
CITY SECRETARY      CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 



 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE     CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
 
 
CITY OF KILLEEN, TEXAS     COUNTY OF BELL, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   _____________________________ 
KENT CAGLE       DAVID BLACKBURN 
CITY MANAGER      COUNTY JUDGE 
 
Date: __________________________   Date: ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
LUCY ALDRICH         
CITY SECRETARY       
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE    
   
 
RURAL COUNTIES: 
 
COUNTY OF CORYELL, TEXAS    COUNTY OF HAMILTON, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   _____________________________ 
ROGER MILLER      W. MARK TYNES 
COUNTY JUDGE      COUNTY JUDGE 
 
Date: __________________________   Date: ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 



 

COUNTY OF LAMPASAS, TEXAS    COUNTY OF LLANO, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   _____________________________ 
RANDALL HOYER      PETER JONES 
COUNTY JUDGE COUNTY COMMISSIONER, 

PRECINCT 1 
 
Date: __________________________   Date: ________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
 
 
   
COUNTY OF MASON, TEXAS    COUNTY OF MILAM, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   _____________________________ 
JERRY BEARDEN      STEVE YOUNG 
COUNTY JUDGE      COUNTY JUDGE 
 
Date: __________________________   Date: ________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
COUNTY OF MILLS, TEXAS     COUNTY OF SAN SABA, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   _____________________________ 
ED SMITH       BRYAN THEODOSIS 
COUNTY JUDGE COUNTY JUDGE 
 
Date: __________________________   Date: ________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
         
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
     
 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 14, 2020 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
   
Agenda Item #6 

 
Hold a public hearing and consider a resolution for demolition of the structure at 603 
South Penelope Street, also described as Belton Original, Block 038, part of Lots 2 
and 4 (S 35’ of E 90’ of 2 and N 40’ of E 90’ of 4), Griffin/Mitchell Contract. The owner 
on the tax roll is Betty Ligon, c/o Kerry and Robert Griffin. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning Department - Cheryl Maxwell, Planning Director 
Bruce Ebbert, Building Official 
 
Summary Information 
 
The structure located at 603 South Penelope Street was first posted as a dangerous 
structure, fire hazard, public nuisance and health hazard by the Building Official on 
May 29, 2019. The house is in disrepair. Several fires, the most recent which occurred 
Monday, June 29, 2020, have damaged the residence, and it is inhabitable. All utilities 
have been disconnected. Due to the extensive damage and neglect, City staff 
recommends demolition of this house. The owner will be liable for any costs related to 
demolition. If the owner does not pay for the demolition, City staff will place a lien on 
the property.  
 
Certified letters stating the current condition of the property and possible action by 
Housing Board of Adjustments and Appeals (HBA) were mailed on May 27, 2019, 
September 11, 2019 and March 13, 2020 to Betty Lou Ligon and Kerry Griffin and 
Robert Mitchell c/o Betty Ligon with addresses in Arkansas (listed on the current tax 
roll as the owners). All three letters were returned to sender and marked “unable to 
forward” and “unclaimed” by the Postal Service. A certified letter stating the date and 
time of this meeting was sent to the owners on June 12, 2020. All notice letters were 
posted on the property. 
 
Staff made attempts to reach a second address, also located in Arkansas, found 
during a title search of the property, however the certified letter was returned without a 
forwarding address.  
A legal notice of the violation was printed on March 19, 20 and 21, 2020 in the Temple 
Daily Telegram. City staff has received no responses.  
 
Recommendation 
 
The Housing Board of Adjustments and Appeals met on June 18, 2020, and with a vote 
of 4-0, unanimously recommended demolition of the structure at 603 South Penelope 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 14, 2020 

Page 2 of 2

Street.  Staff concurs with their recommendation. If the Council takes action to demolish 
this structure, State law requires a 30 day wait period to allow the property owner the 
opportunity to appeal this decision to District Court.  

Note: Staff is updating the City Code of Ordinances, Chapter 4, Article VII, Minimum 
Housing Code, to reflect current State law. A workshop on this item is anticipated later 
this year. 

Attachments 
Notification Letters  
Notice of Violation 
Map 
Lien documents 
Opinion of Probable Cost 
HBA minutes excerpt 
Updated photos following recent fire 
Resolution 



  333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 

May 27, 2019 

Betty Ligon 
c/o Kerry Lynn Griffin and Robert Allen Mitchell 
455 Calvin Road 
Amity, Arkansas 71921-9583 

Re:  603 South Penelope Street 
Structure fire 

To Whom It May Concern: 

The structure located at 603 South Penelope Street was damaged by a fire.  It is currently 
unsecured and presents a dangerous situation for anyone around the property.  Please refer to 
the attached Notice of Violation.  You must secure a remodeling or demolition permit within 30 
days of receipt of this notice (see highlighted area on the attached Notice of Violation).   

If the structure is left in this condition, it will be declared unsafe and condemned, which may 
result in demolition of the structure and clean-up of the lot.  Should this occur, you will be held 
responsible for all expenses associated with this process.  

Please contact me as soon as possible so we may discuss the permit and next steps.  

Sincerely, 

Bruce A. Ebbert 
Building Official 

City of Belton 
Planning Department 



  333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 

September 11, 2019 

Betty Ligon 
c/o Kerry Lynn Griffin and Robert Allen Mitchell 
455 Calvin Road 
Amity, Arkansas 71921-9583 

Re:  603 South Penelope Street 
Belton, TX 76513 
Structure fire 

To Whom It May Concern: 

This is the second certified letter from the City of Belton, Texas notifying you of the City’s 
request for a remodel or demolition permit for the structure located at 603 South Penelope 
Street.  

It was damaged by a fire and is currently unsecured. It presents a dangerous situation for 
anyone around the property.  Please refer to the attached Notice of Violation.  

If the Planning Department does not receive a permit application for remodeling or demolition 
within 30 days of receipt of this notice, I am forced to take this matter before the Housing 
Board of Adjustments (HBA) to discuss possible action the City may take against this property. 
This could result in the demolition of the structure and clean-up of the lot. Should this occur, 
you will be held responsible for all expenses associated with this process.  

Please contact me as soon as possible so we may discuss the permit and next steps.  

Sincerely, 

Bruce A. Ebbert 
Building Official 

City of Belton 
Planning Department 



  333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 

March 12, 2020 

Betty Ligon 
c/o Kerry Lynn Griffin and Robert Allen Mitchell 
455 Calvin Road 
Amity, Arkansas 71921-9583 

Re:  603 South Penelope Street 
Belton, TX 76513 
Structure fire 

To Whom It May Concern: 

This is the third certified letter from the City of Belton, Texas notifying you of the City’s request 
for a remodel or demolition permit for the structure located at 603 South Penelope Street.  

It was damaged by a fire and is currently unsecured. It presents a dangerous situation for 
anyone around the property.  Please refer to the attached Notice of Violation.  

This is the final notice before we move forward to recommend the home for demolition. 

If the Planning Department does not receive a permit application for remodeling or demolition 
within 30 days of receipt of this notice, I am forced to take this matter before the Housing 
Board of Adjustments (HBA) to discuss possible action the City may take against this property. 
This could result in the demolition of the structure and clean-up of the lot. Should this occur, 
you will be held responsible for all expenses associated with this process.  

Please contact me as soon as possible so we may discuss the permit and next steps.  

Sincerely, 

Bruce A. Ebbert 
Building Official 

City of Belton 
Planning Department 



  333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 

June 12, 2020 

Betty Ligon 
c/o Kerry Lynn Griffin and Robert Allen Mitchell 
455 Calvin Road 
Amity, Arkansas 71921-9583 

Re:  603 South Penelope Street 
Belton, TX 76513 
Structure fire 

To Whom It May Concern: 

This your Notice to Attend the Housing Board of Adjustments and Appeals meeting on June 18, 
2020 at the Harris Community Center, 401 N. Alexander Street, Belton, TX 76513. A 
recommendation will be made for demolition or repairs for 603 South Penelope Street, BELTON 
ORIGINAL, BLOCK 038, LOT PT 2, 4, (S 35’ of E 90’ of 2 & N 40’ of E 90’ of 4), GRIFFIN/MITCHELL 
CONTRACT. 

As the owners of the property, you will be held responsible for all expenses associated with this 
process.  

Please see the attached Agenda for the June 18, 2020 meeting and the Note announcing the next 
steps at the July 14, 2020 City Council meeting.  

Sincerely, 

Bruce A. Ebbert 
Building Official 

City of Belton 
Planning Department 



           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

       
 

 

June 12, 2020 
 
 
Betty Ligon 
PO Box 2973 
Hot Springs, AR 71914 
 
 
Re:  603 South Penelope Street 
 Belton, TX 76513 

Structure fire 
 

To Whom It May Concern: 
 
This your Notice to Attend the Housing Board of Adjustments and Appeals meeting on June 18, 
2020 at the Harris Community Center, 401 N. Alexander Street, Belton, TX 76513. A 
recommendation will be made for demolition or repairs for 603 South Penelope Street, BELTON 
ORIGINAL, BLOCK 038, LOT PT 2, 4, (S 35’ of E 90’ of 2 & N 40’ of E 90’ of 4), GRIFFIN/MITCHELL 
CONTRACT. 
 
As the owners of the property, you will be held responsible for all expenses associated with this 
process.  
 
Please see the attached Agenda for the June 18, 2020 meeting and the Note announcing the next 
steps at the July 14, 2020 City Council meeting.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Bruce A. Ebbert 
Building Official  

City of Belton 

 

Planning Department 





City of Belton
Notice of Violation

Case No. 

Address 

Lot Block 

Addition l 

Owner Address 

City State Zip 

Executor 

Address 

City State Zip 

Mortgage Company 

Address 

City State Zip 

The City of Belton conducted an onsite inspection of the above structure and premises on the date shown below.  This inspection revealed 
substantial violations of the City of Belton’s Code of Ordinances.  The official tax rolls of Bell County reflect that you are the owner (or in control) of 
this property.  Our inspection of this property found the deficiencies marked below and on the back of this form.  
Deficiencies Observed: Belton code of Ordinances, Section 4-308 

Walls or vertical members list or lean greater than 1/8" per Vertical Foot. 
Structural Damage: Fire Explosion Wind 

Vandalism Other    
Inadequate egress facilities. 
Part so attached that it may fall or injure persons or property. 
Structure unsafe or unsanitary. 
Structure dangerous to public health, morals, safety or general welfare of the public. 
Structure poses a clear and present danger to surrounding properties by serving as an attractive nuisance, a harbor for vermin and/or a fire 
hazard. 

Restoration needed: 

 Major repairs   Minor Repairs   Remove all trash and debris from property 
Inspector’s recommendations: 

 Potential for rehabilitation  Demolition of structure 
Compliance: 

1. You must secure a remodeling or demolition permit within thirty (30) days of receipt of this notice.
2. Remodeling or demolition must commence within thirty (30) days of receipt of this notice.
3. Remodeling or demolition must be completed within ninety (90) days of receipt of this notice.

If repairs, reconstruction, alterations, removal or demolition are not voluntarily completed within the stated times set forth above, we will
schedule this structure for presentation to the Housing Board of Adjustments and Appeals for their review and decision.  The Housing Board of 
Adjustments and Appeals will then  recommend to the City Council that they order City personnel to involuntarily abate the violation(s). 

Effective this date, The City of Belton prohibits you from permitting any type of occupancy of this building. 

If you should need any additional information or assistance concerning this matter, please feel free to contact me between 8:00 A.M. and 
5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday at (254) 933-5814. 

Inspector:  Date of Inspection: 

LWeaver
Highlight



MINIMUM HOUSING CODE VIOLATIONS
BUILDING 

OPEN SECURE  VACANT OCCUPIED 

PLUMBING: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-312 

Kitchen Sink, Lavatory Basin, Bathtub, Water Closet, or Shower Not Connected to Municipal Water and Approved Sewage System. 
Water Closet, Bathtub, or Shower Not Installed as to Provide Privacy or Opens Directly into Kitchen or Cooking Area. 
Sinks, Lavatories, Bathtubs, or Showers Not Connected to Operable Hot and Cold Water Lines. 

HEATING: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-313 

Heating Facilities Not Installed or Maintained according to the Standards and Regulations Set Forth in the State Statutes, Standard 
Plumbing Code, or National Electrical Code, And/or  

Unable to Heat Habitable Room to 70° Fahrenheit 3' above the Floor. 
No Water Heating Equipment Installed according to State Statutes and Standard Plumbing Code or Connected to Facilities. 

LIGHTING AND VENTILATION: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-314 

Each Habitable Room Does Not Have at Least One Window or Skylight Facing Outdoors. 
Each Habitable Room Does Not Have at Least One Window or Skylight That Can Be Easily Opened, or Does Not Have any Other Device as 
Will Adequately Ventilate the Room. 

ELECTRIC SERVICE: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-315 

Dwelling Not Wired for Electric Lights and Convenience Receptacles according to the National Electric Code. 
Fixtures, Receptacles, Equipment and Wiring Is Not Installed or Maintained in Safe and Good Repair according to the National Electrical 
Code. 

Electric Service Is Obsolete or Used in Such Manner That Would Constitute a Hazard to Life and Property. 

SAFE AND SANITARY MAINTENANCE: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-316 

Every Foundation and Exterior Wall and Exterior Roof Not Weather-tight and Rodent Proof. 
Exterior Walls Not Impervious to Weather Due to Lack of or Deterioration of Paint or Other Protective Coating and Not Maintained in Good 
Condition or Repair. 

Foundation Walls and Exterior Roofs Not Maintained in Safe Manner to be capable of Supporting Normal Use and Loads. 
Floors, Interior Walls, and Ceilings Not Rodent Proof And/or in Sound Condition and Good Repair and Capable of Supporting Normal Use 
and Loads.  

Every Window, Exterior Door, Basement or Cellar Door and Hatchway Are Not Substantially Weather-tight, Watertight, and Rodent Proof. 
Stairs, Porches, or Other Attached Appurtenance Are Not Safe to Use; Are Not Capable of Supporting Normal Use or Loads; and/or are not 
Kept in Sound Condition and Good Repair. 

Bathroom and Water Closet Compartment Floor Surface Not Constructed or Maintained to Be Impervious to Water and Kept in a Clean and 
Sanitary Condition. 

EGRESS AND SPACE REQUIREMENTS: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-317 

Dwelling Does Not Contain at Least 150 Square Feet of Floor Space, Based upon Habitable Rooms, plus 100 Square Feet per Occupant. 
Does Not Meet 7' Ceiling Height Requirements. 
Bathroom or Water Closet Accessed Only by Going Through Another Sleeping Room. 
Sleeping Room Accessed Only by Going Through Bathroom or Water Closet or Other Sleeping Room. 
No Safe and Unobstructed Means of Egress to Open Space at Ground Level as Required by Standard Building Code. 

CONTROL OF INSECTS AND RODENTS: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-318 

Mesh Screens on Windows and Openings from Dwelling to Outdoor Space missing or torn. 
Yard Not Graded to Prevent the Accumulation of Stagnant Water. 

Comments: 





TITLE LETTER

GF NO: RS200009 DATE: March 18, 2020

TO: City of Belton
333 Water Street
Belton, TX  76513

We have examined the records in the offices of the County Clerk of Bell County, Texas, as to the
following described property, to-wit:

Being part of Lots Two (2) and Four (4), Original Town of Belton as further described in
Executrix's Deed recorded under Instrument #2013-00004803, Official Public Records of Real
Property of Bell County, Texas.

from February 5, 2013 down to March 9, 2020, and find the following liens, Federal Tax Liens and
Judgments, of record, as follows:

Involuntary lien dated 10/31/2017, filed and recorded 11/2/2017 under Instrument
#2017-00046257 Official Public Records of Real Property of Bell County, Texas, City of Belton
vs. Betty Ligon, in the amount of $150.00.

The latest Deed of record dated October 26, 2011, recorded in Instrument #2013-00004803, Official
Public Records of Real Property of Bell County, Texas, shows grantee to be:  Betty Ligon

This search does not cover any additional matters, other than the item(s) listed above and the liability of
the company is limited to $125.00, the charge for this Title Letter, and this Title Letter is expressly NOT a
representation or warranty that title to real property searched is, in fact, vested in Betty Ligon

Centraland Title Company
2005 Bird Creek Drive, Suite 100
Temple, TX 76502
Phone:  (254) 771-1346
Fax No. (254) 774-7899

By: 

Escrow Officer

















TITLE LETTER

GF NO: RS200009 DATE: March 18, 2020

TO: City of Belton
333 Water Street
Belton, TX  76513

We have examined the records in the offices of the County Clerk of Bell County, Texas, as to the
following described property, to-wit:

Being part of Lots Two (2) and Four (4), Original Town of Belton as further described in
Executrix's Deed recorded under Instrument #2013-00004803, Official Public Records of Real
Property of Bell County, Texas.

from February 5, 2013 down to March 9, 2020, and find the following liens, Federal Tax Liens and
Judgments, of record, as follows:

Involuntary lien dated 10/31/2017, filed and recorded 11/2/2017 under Instrument
#2017-00046257 Official Public Records of Real Property of Bell County, Texas, City of Belton
vs. Betty Ligon, in the amount of $150.00.

The latest Deed of record dated October 26, 2011, recorded in Instrument #2013-00004803, Official
Public Records of Real Property of Bell County, Texas, shows grantee to be:  Betty Ligon

This search does not cover any additional matters, other than the item(s) listed above and the liability of
the company is limited to $125.00, the charge for this Title Letter, and this Title Letter is expressly NOT a
representation or warranty that title to real property searched is, in fact, vested in Betty Ligon

Centraland Title Company
2005 Bird Creek Drive, Suite 100
Temple, TX 76502
Phone:  (254) 771-1346
Fax No. (254) 774-7899

By: 

Escrow Officer





1 / 11 Photo Report

May 28, 2020 | 29 Photos

Photo Report
OPC 603 S Penelope St



2 / 11 Photo Report

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:24 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Front of the Residence

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:16 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Right Elevation

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:16 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS83MGFiYWM0Yy01MmE1LTRkNGItOWY2ZS0wYzA1NGEzNjU0ZTAuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS80MjI3NWVmZC02YTAwLTRmYzgtOTFhNi0wNzA1Nzg4MmEwYzAuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS85ODY4MDk4Zi03MDc3LTRhNTAtODM4ZS05Y2FhMjQ4OWY5M2EuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true


3 / 11 Photo Report

Left Elevation

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:16 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Rear Elevation

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:17 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Underneath the residence

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:17 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS9mNmEwYzgxZi0zZDdiLTQ2OGYtYjMzNy1mZDUyZGMxODU3ZDYuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS8zMjYwMjAyOS0wMjMzLTQ5MjYtYWVjMS00MWE1ODBmMjA5NDMuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS80NzUyMzI4MS05NzY2LTRiMmMtOTQzYy1lNzQ0OTNjMDIwOGQuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true


4 / 11 Photo Report

Living room has excessive damge

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:20 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Fire Damage

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:20 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Smoke & Fire Damage

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:21 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS9lYzg0OTZjZC00YTRmLTQzOTYtOWJjOS03YWRmZTliZDRkZjAuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS9mNTZiN2ZiZS0wNGEwLTQ1NTItOGUyNy04MmY5OTgyOWZkZjEuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS9hNjcwYTU3Mi0wOThjLTRiZGMtOGM5OC02Y2ZiYzkzZDA5MTcuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true


5 / 11 Photo Report

Smoke & Water Damage

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:21 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:21 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Water & Smoke Damage

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:21 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS8wMTEzZWNjOS1iMGU4LTQwZDMtOTU0ZS1mZGIzYzM5ZDE1OTIuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS9lYzY2ZTkyZC1lYzg2LTQyM2QtOWUyMy1iNTFlMWFiZmJiMjUuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS9lNjJiN2EzYS01OGUzLTQ3YTYtYTUzMi1jZjBhNzkyMjk2NWQuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true


6 / 11 Photo Report

Exposed Electrical Wires

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:21 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Smoke & Water Damage

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:21 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:21 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS9hMzkzMTY2YS04NjUwLTQ3MDktOWIyYS0zMTVhZjFlNDllOGYuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS9iMzM0YTZiZS0zMjUzLTQyMDUtOTkwMS1jMDdkYmFjNjI1ZjkuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS8xYWM4OTEzZi0xYzlmLTQ0NzktYTdkZC01MGM2MGYxMmUzOWUuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true


7 / 11 Photo Report

Water Heater missing

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:21 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Washer & Dryer Location

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:22 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:22 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS8yM2Q1ZWRkYy1mNTgwLTRhOWMtYTY5Zi0xNTE5YjQ4NjNkZDEuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS84MzBiOTJhYy02ZjFiLTQ1YjgtOGYwYS1kZjhmZDBkYWM4YTYuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS9lNmVjNjAyMy0wZGIzLTRjYjYtOWNiYi01Mjk1ODM5YmI0ZjcuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true


8 / 11 Photo Report

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:22 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Exposed Electrical and Damage to sub-)oor

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:22 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Smoke & Fire Damage

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:22 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS81N2EyYWZkZC1iM2RkLTQ2N2MtYTU1NC0xMmJjZGM3NzlkZTcuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS8xYjNmMTljNC04NmY0LTQyYmUtOGI3OS1mYzcxYWM1YTIyNDUuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS80OTgwZDY5ZC0zNDlkLTQxNTQtODhhNy1jMWY5MWU4YjA2ZjEuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true


9 / 11 Photo Report

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:22 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Smoke & Fire Damage

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:23 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:23 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS9iMzVlZGM2OS04MjA2LTQyMjUtYTZmNy1hOTZmNmI3NjY4ZDEuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS9mNDZlYTE2Mi1jY2M2LTQ3NjctYmI2Ni04MWI3NjhjMTczYTUuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS9iMTNmMDI0Ni01NTE4LTRhMjktYmMyYi0wZGFkMDA2M2QyZjIuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true


10 / 11 Photo Report

Smoke & Heat Damage

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:23 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Fire Damage

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:23 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Fire Damage

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:23 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS83YjFjN2VhNS05NzIzLTRmY2YtYWM2Yy1kMGQ4ZmM3NzNkMjQuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS8zYWI2N2JiMS0xNWEzLTQzZjItYWY5Ny0xZTAxNDBhY2E0YzIuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS83MmEyOTgyYy1mZWVmLTQ3MjYtYTNiYy1iOWIzYzczNjk0MWUuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true


11 / 11 Photo Report

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:23 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

Fire Damage

Project: OPC 603 S Penelope St
Date: May 26th, 2020, 5:24 p.m.
Creator: Rey Ramirez

https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS81ZWQ1Mjk1OS0yZDFmLTQ5ZmYtODI0Yi0wMTMzNTFkMmM3NmQuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true
https://static.companycam.com/lambda/projects/26785338/photos/aHR0cHM6Ly9jb21wYW55Y2FtLXBlbmRpbmcuczMuYW1hem9uYXdzLmNvbS80ZjdhOWNhNS1iMjYzLTQ2ZWYtYWU2MS0yZTExNmViOWQ2MDMuSlBH.jpeg?d=2880x2880&degrade=true


1 
 

Minutes of the  
Housing Board of Adjustments and Appeals 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Thursday June 18, 2020 
 

The Housing Board of Adjustments and Appeals met at 5:30 P.M. at the Harris Community Center, 
401 North Alexander Street. The following members were present: Samantha Crumbaugh, Johner 
Martin, James Neeley and Timothy Watson. Board member John Corsi was absent. The following 
staff members were present: Building Official Bruce Ebbert, Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, 
Building Inspector Carl Macek, Planner Tina Moore, Planning Clerk Laura Livingston and 
Director of IT Chris Brown.  
 
5. Hold a public hearing and recommend action regarding the structure at 603 South    
      Penelope Street, Belton, TX 76513, also described as Belton Original, Block    
      038, part of Lots 2 & 4 (S 35' of E 90' of 2 & N 40' of E 90' of 4), Griffin/Mitchell Contract.  
      The owner on the tax roll is Betty Ligon, c/o Kerry and Robert Griffin.  
  
 Mr. Ebbert presented the staff report. 
 
      Chair Crumbaugh opened the public hearing. With no members of the public present, Chair 

Crumbaugh closed the public hearing.  
 
 Chair Crumbaugh asked if there was a recommendation on this case. Mr. Neeley said he 

thought it was pretty self-explanatory looking at the pictures. Mr. Neeley said in the past, they 
consider the recommendation by the Building Official and generally concur; the Housing 
Board recommendation is then taken to the City Council.  

 
 Mr. Neeley made a motion recommending demolition and clean-up of the property. Mr. Martin 

seconded the motion and it was approved unanimously, 4-0. The recommendation will move 
to the July 14, 2020, City Council meeting.  

 
      With no further business, Chair Crumbaugh adjourned the meeting at 5:39 p.m. 
 
                         

      
___________________________________ 

                                                                        Chair, Housing Board of Adjustments 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Updated pictures taken July 8, 2020 



 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-22-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
ORDERING DEMOLITION BY THE PROPERTY OWNER OF A DILAPIDATED 
STRUCTURE LOCATED AT 603 S. PENELOPE STREET WITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE 
DATE OF THIS RESOLUTION, AND A LIEN FOR THE COSTS OF DEMOLITION BE 
PLACED AGAINST THE PROPERTY SHOULD THE CITY DEMOLISH THE 
STRUCTURE ON BEHALF OF THE PROPERTY OWNER. 

 
WHEREAS,  on June 18, 2020, the City of Belton Housing Board of Adjustments and 

Appeals held a hearing on a dilapidated structure located at 603 S. Penelope Street, Belton, 
Texas, described as Belton Original, Block 038, Lot Pt 2, 4, (S 35’ of E 90’ of 2 & N 40’ of E 90’ 
of 4), Griffin/Mitchell Contract. 
 

WHEREAS, the decision of the Housing Board of Adjustments and Appeals at that time 
was that the structure be demolished and a lien for the costs of the demolition be placed against 
the property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the findings of the Housing Board of 

Adjustments and Appeals and finds that the decision of the Housing Board of Adjustments and 
Appeals is supported by substantial evidence, including the violations noted in Exhibit “A” and 
the following: 

 
The City of Belton Code of Ordinances identifies seven conditions that constitute an 

uninhabitable and dangerous building. These conditions apply to this structure and are listed 
below: 

 
1. Walls or other vertical structural members list, lean or buckle in excess of 1/8” 

horizontal measurement for each one foot of vertical measurement. 
2. Exclusive of foundation, the structure shows 33% or more damage or deterioration of 

supporting members. 
3. The structure is damaged by fire, wind, vandalism or elements of nature so as to have 

become dangerous to life, safety, morals, or the general health and welfare of the 
occupants or the people of the City. 

4. The building has inadequate facilities for egress in case of fire or panic. 
5. Parts of the structure are so attached that they may fall and injure members of the 

public or property. 
6. The condition of the structure is unsafe, unsanitary and dangerous to the health, 

morals, safety or general welfare of the people of the City. 
7. The building violates provisions of the City’s housing code, plumbing code, fire code, 

electrical code, the statutes of the states as revised, or fail to comply with any portion 
of the building code. 

 
The building was in an extremely dilapidated state at the time of condemnation, and it is 

the opinion of the Building Official that this structure meets all the conditions cited above. 
 
The following is a list of known defects, which must be addressed to meet minimum 

housing codes, Sections 4-312 through 4-318: 
 
1. Structure is at least 50% damaged or deteriorated on a structural and value basis; 



2. Fire damaged structural members must be removed and replaced; 
3. Plumbing, electrical, and mechanical systems are damaged to the extent they 

must be replaced; and 
4. Damaged interior and exterior wall coverings and siding must be replaced. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BELTON, TEXAS that the decision of the Housing Board of Adjustments and Appeals shall 
stand approved and that the structure located at 603 S. Penelope Street, Belton, Texas, 
described as Belton Original, Block 038, Lot Pt 2, 4, (S 35’ of E 90’ of 2 & N 40’ of E 90’ of 4), 
Griffin/Mitchell Contract, shall be demolished by the Property Owner within 30 days. If the 
structure has not been demolished at the end of the 30 day period, it shall be demolished by the 
City or its agents; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the appropriate lien to recover the costs of demolition 
be assessed against the property if demolished by the City. The only appeal to this Order is to 
District Court within 30 days from today’s date. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 14th day of July, 2020, by the City Council of Belton, 

Texas. 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST:       
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



City of Belton
Notice of Violation

Case No. 

Address 

Lot Block 

Addition l 

Owner Address 

City State Zip 

Executor 

Address 

City State Zip 

Mortgage Company 

Address 

City State Zip 

The City of Belton conducted an onsite inspection of the above structure and premises on the date shown below.  This inspection revealed 
substantial violations of the City of Belton’s Code of Ordinances.  The official tax rolls of Bell County reflect that you are the owner (or in control) of 
this property.  Our inspection of this property found the deficiencies marked below and on the back of this form.  
Deficiencies Observed: Belton code of Ordinances, Section 4-308 

Walls or vertical members list or lean greater than 1/8" per Vertical Foot. 
Structural Damage: Fire Explosion Wind 

Vandalism Other    
Inadequate egress facilities. 
Part so attached that it may fall or injure persons or property. 
Structure unsafe or unsanitary. 
Structure dangerous to public health, morals, safety or general welfare of the public. 
Structure poses a clear and present danger to surrounding properties by serving as an attractive nuisance, a harbor for vermin and/or a fire 
hazard. 

Restoration needed: 

 Major repairs   Minor Repairs   Remove all trash and debris from property 
Inspector’s recommendations: 

 Potential for rehabilitation  Demolition of structure 
Compliance: 

1. You must secure a remodeling or demolition permit within thirty (30) days of receipt of this notice.
2. Remodeling or demolition must commence within thirty (30) days of receipt of this notice.
3. Remodeling or demolition must be completed within ninety (90) days of receipt of this notice.

If repairs, reconstruction, alterations, removal or demolition are not voluntarily completed within the stated times set forth above, we will
schedule this structure for presentation to the Housing Board of Adjustments and Appeals for their review and decision.  The Housing Board of 
Adjustments and Appeals will then  recommend to the City Council that they order City personnel to involuntarily abate the violation(s). 

Effective this date, The City of Belton prohibits you from permitting any type of occupancy of this building. 

If you should need any additional information or assistance concerning this matter, please feel free to contact me between 8:00 A.M. and 
5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday at (254) 933-5814. 

Inspector:  Date of Inspection: 

EXHIBIT "A"

LWeaver
Highlight



MINIMUM HOUSING CODE VIOLATIONS
BUILDING 

OPEN SECURE  VACANT OCCUPIED 

PLUMBING: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-312 

Kitchen Sink, Lavatory Basin, Bathtub, Water Closet, or Shower Not Connected to Municipal Water and Approved Sewage System. 
Water Closet, Bathtub, or Shower Not Installed as to Provide Privacy or Opens Directly into Kitchen or Cooking Area. 
Sinks, Lavatories, Bathtubs, or Showers Not Connected to Operable Hot and Cold Water Lines. 

HEATING: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-313 

Heating Facilities Not Installed or Maintained according to the Standards and Regulations Set Forth in the State Statutes, Standard 
Plumbing Code, or National Electrical Code, And/or  

Unable to Heat Habitable Room to 70° Fahrenheit 3' above the Floor. 
No Water Heating Equipment Installed according to State Statutes and Standard Plumbing Code or Connected to Facilities. 

LIGHTING AND VENTILATION: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-314 

Each Habitable Room Does Not Have at Least One Window or Skylight Facing Outdoors. 
Each Habitable Room Does Not Have at Least One Window or Skylight That Can Be Easily Opened, or Does Not Have any Other Device as 
Will Adequately Ventilate the Room. 

ELECTRIC SERVICE: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-315 

Dwelling Not Wired for Electric Lights and Convenience Receptacles according to the National Electric Code. 
Fixtures, Receptacles, Equipment and Wiring Is Not Installed or Maintained in Safe and Good Repair according to the National Electrical 
Code. 

Electric Service Is Obsolete or Used in Such Manner That Would Constitute a Hazard to Life and Property. 

SAFE AND SANITARY MAINTENANCE: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-316 

Every Foundation and Exterior Wall and Exterior Roof Not Weather-tight and Rodent Proof. 
Exterior Walls Not Impervious to Weather Due to Lack of or Deterioration of Paint or Other Protective Coating and Not Maintained in Good 
Condition or Repair. 

Foundation Walls and Exterior Roofs Not Maintained in Safe Manner to be capable of Supporting Normal Use and Loads. 
Floors, Interior Walls, and Ceilings Not Rodent Proof And/or in Sound Condition and Good Repair and Capable of Supporting Normal Use 
and Loads.  

Every Window, Exterior Door, Basement or Cellar Door and Hatchway Are Not Substantially Weather-tight, Watertight, and Rodent Proof. 
Stairs, Porches, or Other Attached Appurtenance Are Not Safe to Use; Are Not Capable of Supporting Normal Use or Loads; and/or are not 
Kept in Sound Condition and Good Repair. 

Bathroom and Water Closet Compartment Floor Surface Not Constructed or Maintained to Be Impervious to Water and Kept in a Clean and 
Sanitary Condition. 

EGRESS AND SPACE REQUIREMENTS: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-317 

Dwelling Does Not Contain at Least 150 Square Feet of Floor Space, Based upon Habitable Rooms, plus 100 Square Feet per Occupant. 
Does Not Meet 7' Ceiling Height Requirements. 
Bathroom or Water Closet Accessed Only by Going Through Another Sleeping Room. 
Sleeping Room Accessed Only by Going Through Bathroom or Water Closet or Other Sleeping Room. 
No Safe and Unobstructed Means of Egress to Open Space at Ground Level as Required by Standard Building Code. 

CONTROL OF INSECTS AND RODENTS: BELTON CODE OF ORDINANCE SEC. 4-318 

Mesh Screens on Windows and Openings from Dwelling to Outdoor Space missing or torn. 
Yard Not Graded to Prevent the Accumulation of Stagnant Water. 

Comments: 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 14, 2020 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #7  
 
Hold a public hearing and discuss proposed Charter amendments.     
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Amy M Casey, City Clerk 

Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
 
Summary Information 
 
At the Strategic Plan Update Session on April 14, 2020, one of the targeted initiatives that 
emerged was review of the 2005 City of Belton Charter. In May, the Council appointed a 10-
member Charter Review Committee. The Committee includes: Dave Covington (Chair), 
Alton McCallum (Vice Chair), Brett Baggerly, Brandon Bozon, Daniel Bucher, Jane 
Dominguez, Dan Kirkley, David K. Leigh, Craig Pearson and Jeannie Pittman. The 
committee met weekly from May 28th until July 6th and considered many potential Charter 
amendments. After much discussion, the Committee narrowed the amendments to the 
following propositions. 
 
Proposition A: 3 Year Terms 
Proposition B: Appointment of Mayor by City Council 
Proposition C: Filling Vacancy by Appointment 
Proposition D: Flexibility in General Election Date 
Proposition E: Flexibility in Polling Locations 
 
A report on the ballot language and corresponding Charter language amendments is 
included as an attachment.  
 
Chair Dave Covington will present the proposed Charter amendments/propositions at the 
meeting. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Amount: unknown at this time 
 
Budgeted:   Yes   No  
 
The FY 2021 budget includes $1,500 for a Charter amendment election. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Hold the public hearing. No other action is required of Council at this time. 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 14, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 
 

A second public hearing and Council action on recommended amendments is scheduled at 
the July 28, 2020 meeting. Council action to call a Charter election for November 3, 2020, is 
scheduled for August 11, 2020. 
 
Attachments 
 
Report on Proposed Amendments 
Presentation 



1 | P a g e  
 

CITY OF BELTON PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS 
Recommendations to City Council 

July 14, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Revisions to Charter language should Proposition A pass: 
 
Section 3.01. - Governing Body. 
 

(a) The governing body of the City shall consist of a City Council composed of a 
Mayor and six Councilmembers elected by plurality majority vote from the City 
at large. The Mayor and each other member of the Council elected at a regular 
election shall be elected for a term of two years, and if elected at a special 
election they shall be elected to serve the remainder of the unexpired term of 
the office. The mayor shall be elected for a term of three (3) years to occupy 
a place on the council designated as mayor. The councilmembers shall be 
elected for a term of three (3) years to occupy a place on the council, such 
places being numbered and designated 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6. All members of the 
Council shall serve until their successors are elected and take office. 

(b) The Councilmembers who are elected at the 2020 general election shall 
hold Places 5 and 6. The Councilmembers whose terms end in 2021 shall 
hold Places 1, 2, 3, and 4. On or before December 15, 2020, the 
Councilmembers shall draw lots to determine which Place Numbers they 
hold.  

(c) Beginning with the 2021 general election, the council shall transition to 
three-year terms as provided in this subsection. The candidates elected 
to the Mayor and Councilmember positions in the 2020 general election 
shall serve two-year terms. For the 2021 general election, Places 1 and 2 
shall be elected to two-year terms, and Places 3 and 4 shall be elected to 
three-year terms. For the 2022 general election, the Mayor and Places 5 
and 6 shall be elected to three-year terms. For the 2023 general election, 
Places 1 and 2 shall be elected to three-year terms. Thereafter, the 
candidates elected to the city council in the general election will be elected 
to three-year terms. 

PROPOSITION A: City Council Three-Year Term of Office 
 

Shall Section 3.01 of the City Charter be amended to provide for three-
year terms of office for the Mayor and City Council, and to conform 
Sections 3.03, 5.09, and 5.10 to be consistent with state law for three-
year terms by providing for election by majority vote, providing for runoff 
elections if no candidate is elected by majority vote, and providing for 
special elections to fill vacancies on council? 

□ Yes □ No 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

Each qualified voter of the City may vote for one Mayoral candidate and two 
Councilmember candidates in even numbered years, and for four Councilmember 
candidates in odd numbered years. The candidate for Mayor that receives the highest 
number of votes cast for that position shall be elected. In even numbered years the two 
candidates for Councilmember that individually receive the highest number of votes and 
in odd numbered years the four candidates for Councilmember that individually receive 
the highest number of votes shall be elected. The election shall be ordered by the City 
Council and the City Clerk shall give notice of the election in the manner required by the 
laws of the State of Texas. 
 
Section 3.03. - Vacancies in Office. 
 
The office of Mayor or Councilmember shall become vacant upon the death, resignation, 
or removal from office of the incumbent. Such vacancy shall be filled by special 
election called for such purpose. The date for special elections to fill the vacancy 
shall be the first uniform election date after the vacancy occurs and for which there 
is sufficient time to call and give notice of the election as required by law; provided 
that, if a vacancy occurs and no such election date falls within 120 days after the 
date of the vacancy, the council shall, without regard for the specified uniform 
election dates, order such election to be held on a Saturday within 120 days from 
the date of the vacancy. All vacancies shall be filled for the remainder of the 
unexpired term of the office so filled. No special election will be required if the 
vacated office has a term of 120 days or less remaining as of the date of the first 
council meeting held after the date of the vacancy. 
 
Within thirty (30) days of declaring a vacancy, the Council shall appoint to the vacancy 
a person possessing the qualifications specified in this Charter. If two or more vacancies 
exist and a uniform election date for which timely notice may be given is available 180 
days or more before a general City election, the Council shall, within not more than thirty 
(30) days of the occurrence of the multiple vacancies, call a special election to fill the 
vacancies. If a uniform election date is not available, the Council shall appoint qualified 
persons to fill the vacancies. If no qualified candidate files for election to the office of 
Mayor or Councilmember, or if fewer qualified candidates file than the number of offices 
to be filled, for any special or general election, the Council shall appoint a qualified 
person to fill the position until the next general election. 

 
Section 5.09. Run-Off Election. 
  
If no candidate for an elective office receives a majority of the votes cast for that 
position in the regular or special election, a run-off election shall be held between the 
two (2) candidates who received the greatest number of votes. Such run-off election 
shall be held in accordance with State election laws on a date within the period set 
by state law for holding runoff elections. The candidate receiving the highest number 
of votes cast for the office in the run-off election shall be declared elected.  

 
 



3 | P a g e  
 

Section 5.09. - Tie Votes. 
 
If two (2) or more candidates for Mayor tie for the highest number of votes in an election 
for that office, or if If two (2) or more candidates for any Councilmember office tie for the 
number of votes required for election, the tie shall be broken in a manner authorized by 
the Texas Election Code, or by lot or chance as agreed between the candidates. No 
measure shall be adopted except by majority vote and a tie vote defeats the measure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Revisions to Charter language should Proposition B pass: 
 
Section 4.01. - Mayor. 
 
At its first regular meeting after each general election or a vacancy in the office 
of Mayor, the Council shall elect one of its members to be Mayor for a one (1) year 
term, or to fill the unexpired term resulting from the vacancy. Nominations for 
Mayor shall require a second and the Mayor shall be the Councilmember who 
receives a majority of the votes cast by the Council but not less than four (4) 
votes. The Mayor shall serve as the ceremonial head of the City government, preside 
at all meetings of the Council and provide leadership and coordination necessary to 
good government. He or she shall work closely with the Council to obtain legislation in 
the public interest and with the City Manager to ensure that the same is enforced, and 
participate in the discussion and vote on all legislative and other matters coming before 
the Council. The Mayor and the City Manager shall have signatory authority for all legal 
contracts and commitments of the City. The Mayor shall sign all ordinances and 
resolutions; recommend appointees for the boards and commissions to the Council; 
work and coordinate with the City Manager and the Council; and, in time of declared 
emergency, may take command of the police and govern the City by proclamation, 
maintain order and enforce all laws. The Mayor shall have such additional powers as 
are granted to the office by this Charter, State law, or ordinance. 
 
Section 3.02. - Qualifications. 
 
The Mayor and Councilmembers shall, on the day prior to the date of the scheduled 
election to be held for such office, be citizens of the United States; qualified voters of 
the City; residents of the City, or an area having been annexed into the City, for at least 

PROPOSITION B: Appointment of Mayor by City Council 
 

Shall Sections 3.01, 3.02, 3.03, 4.01, 5.04, 5.09, and 5.10 of the City 
Charter be amended to provide for the Mayor to be appointed each year 
by majority vote of the City Council from among the persons elected to 
Council? 

□ Yes □ No 
 



4 | P a g e  
 

twelve (12) consecutive months; be eighteen (18) years of age or older; and not be 
delinquent on any indebtedness to the City. No City employee shall be eligible to file for 
the office of Mayor or Councilmember and no member of the Council shall hold any 
other elective public office. If a member of the Council ceases to possess any of the 
qualifications of office, is finally convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude, or files 
application to be a candidate for any other elective office when more than 180 days 
remain on his/her term of office, his/her office shall, upon such fact being determined 
by the Council, immediately become vacant; provided that if the residence of a member 
of the Council is disannexed, the member shall serve the remainder of his or her term 
of office. 

 
Section 5.04. - Filing for Office. 
 
Candidates for office shall make application for a place on the ballot within the times 
and manner prescribed by the Texas Election Code. In the absence of a filing deadline 
established by State law, applications for a place on the ballot shall be filed no later than 
5 p.m. on the 45th day before election day. All applications shall designate the position 
sought. It shall be the duty of the City Clerk to place the name of all qualified candidates, 
making timely application, on the official ballot. Each candidate for the Council or any 
other elective office shall meet the following qualifications: 
 
(a)  Have all the qualifications for a Councilmember as described in Section 3.02 of 
this Charter. 
(b) No candidate may file for more than one (1) office per election. 
(c) Each candidate shall file such application in the form required by State law or 
ordinance, as applicable. 
(d) A Councilmember having one (1) year or more remaining on his or her term of office 
may not file for election to the office of Mayor, prior to resigning from the office of 
Councilmember. 
 
Section 5.10. - Term of Office. 
 
The regular term of office of the Mayor and the Councilmembers shall commence 
immediately following the canvass of the vote for the general election at which they are 
elected. A Mayor or Councilmember elected at a special election may take office 
immediately following the canvass of the vote for the election at which they are elected. 
Any elected candidate that refuses to take office within thirty (30) days of the date of the 
canvass of the vote for the election shall forfeit the office. 
 
Additional Revisions to Charter language should Propositions A and 
B pass: 
 
Section 3.01. - Governing Body. 
 

(a) The governing body of the City shall consist of a City Council composed of a 
Mayor and six seven Councilmembers elected by plurality majority vote from 

https://library.municode.com/tx/belton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTICH_ARTIIITHCO_S3.02QU


5 | P a g e  
 

the City at large. The Mayor and each other member of the Council elected at 
a regular election shall be elected for a term of two years, and if elected at a 
special election they shall be elected to serve the remainder of the unexpired 
term of the office. The councilmembers shall be elected for a term of three 
(3) years to occupy a place on the council, such places being numbered 
and designated 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7. All members of the Council shall serve 
until their successors are elected and take office. 

(b) The Councilmembers who are elected at the 2020 general election shall 
hold Places 5, 6, and 7; provided that the candidate elected to the office 
of Mayor in the 2020 general election shall also hold the office of Mayor 
until such office is filled in accordance with Section 4.01 following the 
2022 general election, or following a vacancy, if any, that arises before the 
end of the 2020 term. The Councilmembers whose terms end in 2021 shall 
hold Places 1, 2, 3, and 4. On or before December 15, 2020, the 
Councilmembers shall draw lots to determine which Place Numbers they 
hold.  

(c) Beginning with the 2021 general election, the council shall transition to 
three-year terms as provided in this subsection. The candidates elected 
to the Mayor and two Councilmember positions in the 2020 general 
election shall serve two-year terms. For the 2021 general election, Places 
1 and 2 shall be elected to two-year terms, and Places 3 and 4 shall be 
elected to three-year terms. For the 2022 general election, Places 5, 6, and 
7 shall be elected to three-year terms. For the 2023 general election, 
Places 1 and 2 shall be elected to three-year terms. Thereafter, the 
candidates elected to the city council in the general election will be elected 
to three-year terms. 
 

Section 3.03. - Vacancies in Office. 
 

(a) The office of Mayor or Councilmember shall become vacant upon the death, 
resignation, or removal from office of the incumbent.  

(b) Vacancies in the office of Mayor shall be filled in accordance with Section 
4.01.   

(c) For vacancies in the office of Councilmember, the vacancy shall be filled by 
special election called for such purpose. The date for special elections to fill 
the vacancy shall be the first uniform election date after the vacancy occurs 
and for which there is sufficient time to call and give notice of the election 
as required by law; provided that, if a vacancy occurs and no such election 
date falls within 120 days after the date of the vacancy, the council shall, 
without regard for the specified uniform election dates, order such election 
to be held on a Saturday within 120 days from the date of the vacancy. All 
vacancies shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term of the office 
so filled. No special election will be required if the vacated office has a term 
of 120 days or less remaining as of the date of the first council meeting held 
after the date of the vacancy. 

  



6 | P a g e  
 

Additional Revisions to Charter language should Proposition A fail and 
Proposition B pass: 
 
Section 3.01. - Governing Body. 
 

(a) The governing body of the City shall consist of a City Council composed of a 
Mayor and six seven Councilmembers elected by plurality vote from the City at 
large. The Mayor and each other Each member of the Council elected at a 
regular election shall be elected for a term of two years, and if elected at a special 
election they shall be elected to serve the remainder of the unexpired term of the 
office. All members of the Council shall serve until their successors are elected 
and take office. 

(b) At the regular election held in even numbered years a Mayor shall be elected, 
and two (2) three (3) Councilmembers shall be elected to serve in the Council 
positions for which the term of office expires in that year. At the regular election 
in odd numbered years, four Councilmembers shall be elected to serve in the 
four council positions for which the term of office expires in that year. 

(c) Each qualified voter of the City may vote for one Mayoral candidate and two three 
Councilmember candidates in even numbered years, and for four 
Councilmember candidates in odd numbered years. The candidate for Mayor that 
receives the highest number of votes cast for that position shall be elected. In 
even numbered years the two three candidates for Councilmember that 
individually receive the highest number of votes and in odd numbered years the 
four candidates for Councilmember that individually receive the highest number 
of votes shall be elected. The election shall be ordered by the City Council and 
the City Clerk shall give notice of the election in the manner required by the laws 
of the State of Texas. 

(d) The Mayor elected in the 2020 general election shall serve a two-year term. 
Following the 2022 general election, or if a vacancy arises in the office of 
the Mayor before the end of the term that began in 2020, the Mayor shall be 
appointed as provided in Section 4.01.  

 
Section 3.03. - Vacancies in Office. 
 

(a) The office of Mayor or Councilmember shall become vacant upon the death, 
resignation, or removal from office of the incumbent.  

(b) Vacancies in the office of Mayor shall be filled in accordance with Section 
4.01.  

(c) For vacancies in the office of Councilmember, within Within thirty (30) days 
of declaring a vacancy, the Council shall appoint to the vacancy a person 
possessing the qualifications specified in this Charter. If two or more vacancies 
exist and a uniform election date for which timely notice may be given is available 
180 days or more before a general City election, the Council shall, within not 
more than thirty (30) days of the occurrence of the multiple vacancies, call a 
special election to fill the vacancies. If a uniform election date is not available, 
the Council shall appoint qualified persons to fill the vacancies. If no qualified 



7 | P a g e  
 

candidate files for election to the office of Mayor or Councilmember, or if fewer 
qualified candidates file than the number of offices to be filled, for any special or 
general election, the Council shall appoint a qualified person to fill the position 
until the next general election. 

 
Section 5.09. - Tie Votes. 
 
If two (2) or more candidates for Mayor tie for the highest number of votes in an election 
for that office, or if If two (2) or more candidates for any Councilmember office tie for the 
number of votes required for election, the tie shall be broken in a manner authorized by 
the Texas Election Code, or by lot or chance as agreed between the candidates. No 
measure shall be adopted except by majority vote and a tie vote defeats the measure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revisions to Charter language should Proposition A pass and 
Proposition B fail: 
 
Section 3.03. - Vacancies in Office. 
 
The office of Mayor or Councilmember shall become vacant upon the death, resignation, 
or removal from office of the incumbent. If a vacancy occurs for an unexpired term of 
twelve months or less, the vacancy shall be filled by appointment by the city 
council. If a vacancy occurs for an unexpired term that exceeds twelve months, the 
vacancy shall be filled by special election called for such purpose. The date for 
special elections to fill the vacancy shall be the first uniform election date after the 
vacancy occurs and for which there is sufficient time to call and give notice of the 
election as required by law; provided that, if a vacancy occurs and no such election 
date falls within 120 days after the date of the vacancy, the council shall, without 
regard for the specified uniform election dates, order such election to be held on a 
Saturday within 120 days from the date of the vacancy. All vacancies shall be filled 
for the remainder of the unexpired term of the office so filled. No special election 
will be required if the vacated office has a term of 120 days or less remaining as of 
the date of the first council meeting held after the date of the vacancy. 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSITION C: Filling Vacancies on City Council 
 

If three-year terms are adopted, shall Section 3.03 of the City Charter 
be amended to provide for a vacancy in a Council seat with an 
unexpired term of twelve months or less to be filled by appointment by 
the City Council? 

□ Yes □ No 



8 | P a g e  
 

Revisions to Charter language should Propositions A and B pass: 
 
Section 3.03. - Vacancies in Office. 
 

(a) The office of Mayor or Councilmember shall become vacant upon the death, 
resignation, or removal from office of the incumbent.  

(b) Vacancies in the office of Mayor shall be filled in accordance with Section 
4.01.   

(c) For vacancies in the office of Councilmember, if a vacancy occurs for an 
unexpired term of twelve months or less, the vacancy shall be filled by 
appointment by the city council. If a vacancy occurs for an unexpired 
Councilmember term that exceeds twelve months, the vacancy shall be filled 
by special election called for such purpose. The date for special elections to 
fill the vacancy shall be the first uniform election date after the vacancy 
occurs and for which there is sufficient time to call and give notice of the 
election as required by law; provided that, if a vacancy occurs and no such 
election date falls within 120 days after the date of the vacancy, the council 
shall, without regard for the specified uniform election dates, order such 
election to be held on a Saturday within 120 days from the date of the 
vacancy. All vacancies shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term 
of the office so filled. No special election will be required if the vacated office 
has a term of 120 days or less remaining as of the date of the first council 
meeting held after the date of the vacancy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revisions to Charter language should Proposition D pass: 
 
Section 5.03. - General and Special Elections. 
 
The general City election shall be held annually on the uniform election date in May 
or such other uniform election date designated by the City Council by ordinance; 
provided that changing the general City election date is authorized by state law 
and is changed not more often than every five years. on the first Saturday in May or 
the date nearest thereto as may be required by law. The Council may by ordinance call 
such special elections as are authorized by this Charter or State law, fix the time of 

PROPOSITION D: Authorizing City Council to Change the 
General City Election Date 

 
Shall Section 5.03 of the City Charter be amended to allow the City 
Council to change the date of holding the general City election if doing 
so is allowed by State law and the general election date is not changed 
more often than every five years? 

□ Yes □ No 
 



9 | P a g e  
 

holding such elections, and provide all means for holding such special elections; 
provided that every special election shall be held on a Saturday or a uniform election 
date, unless otherwise provided by law or this Charter.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revisions to Charter language should Proposition E pass: 
 
Section 5.05. - Polling Places. 
 
The Council shall establish one or more election precincts and provide polling places as 
necessary for City elections. Until established otherwise by ordinance, the entire City 
shall be one (1) election precinct. and Early Voting and Election Day voting shall take 
place at locations designated in the Election Order the City hall shall be the polling place 
for all City elections. 
 

 
 
 
 

PROPOSITION E: Authorizing City Council to Change Polling Locations 
 

Shall Section 5.05 of the City Charter be amended to allow the City 
Council to change the polling locations of the general City election to 
those designated in the Election Order? 

□ Yes □ No 
 





CHARTER REVIEW COMMITTEE
• DAVE COVINGTON, CHAIR
• ALTON MCCALLUM, VICE CHAIR
• BRETT BAGGERLY
• BRANDON BOZON
• DANIEL BUCHER

• JANE DOMINGUEZ
• DAN KIRKLEY
• DAVID K. LEIGH
• CRAIG PEARSON
• JEANNIE PITTMAN



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

• PROPOSITION A – 3 YEAR TERMS

• PROPOSITION B – APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR BY CITY COUNCIL

• PROPOSITION C – FILLING VACANCY BY APPOINTMENT

• PROPOSITION D – FLEXIBILITY IN GENERAL ELECTION DATE

• PROPOSITION E – FLEXIBILITY IN POLLING LOCATIONS



PROPOSITION A – BALLOT LANGUAGE
CITY COUNCIL THREE-YEAR TERM OF OFFICE

SHALL SECTION 3.01 OF THE CITY CHARTER BE AMENDED TO PROVIDE FOR THREE–YEAR TERMS OF OFFICE 
FOR THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL, AND TO CONFORM SECTIONS 3.03, 5.09 AND 5.10 TO BE CONSISTENT 
WITH STATE LAW FOR THREE-YEAR TERMS BY PROVIDING FOR ELECTION BY MAJORITY VOTE, PROVIDING 
FOR RUNOFF ELECTIONS IF NO CANDIDATE IS ELECTED BY MAJORITY VOTE, AND PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
ELECTIONS TO FILL VACANCIES ON COUNCIL?



PROPOSITION A - EXPLAINED

• CHANGING FROM 2-YEAR TO 3-YEAR TERMS (WITH A TRANSITION PLAN)
• CHANGING FROM AT-LARGE  POSITIONS TO PLACES
• CHANGING FROM PLURALITY (TOP VOTE GETTERS) TO MAJORITY (MUST GET >50%)



PROPOSITION A – PLACES ASSIGNED



PROPOSITION A – TRANSITION PLAN



PROPOSITION A – PROS

• PROVIDES FOR LONGER TERMS
• PROVIDES STABILITY OF THE COUNCIL BECAUSE THERE ISN’T A MAJORITY UP FOR 

ELECTION AT THE SAME TIME
• “PLACES” ALLOWS A CANDIDATE TO SPECIFICALLY RUN AGAINST AN INCUMBENT WHO 

IS PERCEIVED TO NOT BE DOING A GOOD JOB



PROPOSITION A – CONS
• “PLACES” MAY LEAD TO NEGATIVE CAMPAIGNING
• MAJORITY VOTE CAN LEAD TO RUN-OFF ELECTIONS WHICH INCREASES ELECTION 

COSTS



PROPOSITION B – BALLOT LANGUAGE
APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR BY CITY COUNCIL

SHALL SECTIONS 3.01, 3.02, 3.03, 4.01, 5.04, 5.09 AND 5.10 OF THE CITY CHARTER BE 
AMENDED TO PROVIDE FOR THE MAYOR TO BE APPOINTED EACH YEAR BY MAJORITY VOTE 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL FROM AMONG THE PERSONS ELECTED TO COUNCIL?



PROPOSITION B - EXPLAINED
• CHANGING FROM DIRECT ELECTION OF THE MAYOR TO APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR BY 

COUNCIL
• 1 YEAR APPOINTMENT VS. 2-YEAR OR 3-YEAR TERMS



PROPOSITION B – PROS AND CONS
PROS:
• PREVENTS AN INEXPERIENCED PERSON FROM BEING MAYOR
• PERSON APPOINTED WILL BE MORE AWARE OF TIME COMMITMENT REQUIRED FOR THE 

POSITION OF MAYOR
• MAY LEAD TO GREATER INVOLVEMENT BY COUNCIL SINCE IT IS ONLY A 1-YEAR COMMITMENT
CONS:
• PUBLIC MAY FEEL LESS IN CONTROL BECAUSE THEY CAN’T DIRECTLY ELECT THE MAYOR



PROPOSITION C – BALLOT LANGUAGE
FILLING VACANCIES ON CITY COUNCIL

IF THREE-YEAR TERMS ARE ADOPTED, SHALL SECTION 3.03 OF THE CITY CHARTER BE 
AMENDED TO PROVIDE FOR A VACANCY IN A COUNCIL SEAT WITH AN UNEXPIRED TERM OF 
TWELVE MONTHS OR LESS TO BE FILLED BY APPOINTMENT BY THE CITY COUNCIL?



PROPOSITION C - EXPLAINED
• IF 3-YEAR TERMS (PROPOSITION A) PASSES, THEN THE CHARTER HAS TO OUTLINE HOW 

VACANCIES IN OFFICE ARE FILLED WHEN THERE IS 12 MONTHS OR LESS REMAINING ON 
AN UNEXPIRED TERM. PROPOSING TO FILL THEM BY APPOINTMENT RATHER THAN 
CALLING A SPECIAL ELECTION.



PROPOSITION D – BALLOT LANGUAGE
AUTHORIZING CITY COUNCIL TO CHANGE THE GENERAL CITY ELECTION DATE

SHALL SECTION 5.03 OF THE CITY CHARTER BE AMENDED TO ALLOW THE CITY COUNCIL 
TO CHANGE THE DATE OF HOLDING THE GENERAL CITY ELECTION IF DOING SO IS ALLOWED 
BY STATE LAW AND THE GENERAL ELECTION DATE IS NOT CHANGED MORE OFTEN THAN 
EVERY FIVE YEARS?



PROPOSITION D - EXPLAINED
• ALLOWS COUNCIL THE FLEXIBILITY TO CHANGE THE CITY ELECTION TO NOVEMBER (OR 

ANOTHER UNIFORM ELECTION DATE) SHOULD STATE LAW ALLOW SUCH CHANGE IN THE 
FUTURE. 

• DATE CAN ONLY BE CHANGED ONCE EVERY 5 YEARS.



PROPOSITION E – BALLOT LANGUAGE
AUTHORIZING CITY COUNCIL TO CHANGE POLLING LOCATIONS

SHALL SECTION 5.05 OF THE CITY CHARTER BE AMENDED TO ALLOW THE CITY COUNCIL 
TO CHANGE THE POLLING LOCATIONS OF THE GENERAL CITY ELECTION TO THOSE 
DESIGNATED IN THE ELECTION ORDER?



PROPOSITION E - EXPLAINED

• ALLOWS FLEXIBILITY IN THE CITY’S POLLING LOCATIONS.



NEXT STEPS

• HOLD THE PUBLIC HEARING. NO OTHER ACTION IS NEEDED AT THIS TIME.
• A SECOND PUBLIC HEARING AND ACTION ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS IS

SCHEDULED FOR JULY 28TH.
• ADDITIONAL COUNCIL ACTION, SCHEDULED FOR AUGUST 11TH, IS REQUIRED TO CALL FOR 

A CHARTER AMENDMENT ELECTION ON NOVEMBER 3, 2020.



City Council Agenda Item 
July 14, 2020 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #8 
 
Conduct a work session and discuss changing the name of Confederate Park and 
Confederate Park Drive. 
     
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
 
Summary Information 
 
Several attachments accompany this Work Session topic: 
 

• The City has received a request to consider a name change for Confederate Park 
and Confederate Park Drive by Luke and Kayla Potts (Ex.1). 

• We have also received a request from Douglas Brito (Ex.2) as well as other 
recommendations by various media. 

• The City adopted Resolution 2013-20 establishing a Policy regarding Street/Facility 
naming and name changes (Ex.3). 

• Approximately 2.5 acres of the nearly 16 acres that comprises Confederate Park, and 
the road that bisects it, was conveyed from J.D. and Allie Crawford in 1892 to the Ex 
Confederate Association of Bell County and the City of Belton, for the Association’s 
Reunions and for use as a City park (Ex.4&5). The remaining nearly 13.5 acres was 
acquired over time. The 16-acre has been used as a City park for decades.  
 

If the Council determines a name change is appropriate, there are many names that have 
emerged for consideration including Patriot, Veterans, Unity, Freedom, Peace, as well as 
names honoring individuals. This Work Session will likely generate others. Another 
important aspect of the Work Session is for Council to provide input on a process going 
forward. We have also included a map of Belton Cultural and Historical Resources (Ex.6). 
Belton has an important historical story to tell, and the Nolan Creek Hike and Bike Trail 
provides a unique opportunity for education, with story boards to reflect on Belton’s journey 
toward equality. Some key locations shown on Exhibit 6 include: 
 

• Confederate Park and Confederate Park Road, the subjects of this consideration; 
• Mt. Zion United Methodist Church; 
• T.B. Harris Community Center and Harris Community Park; 
• Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Avenue; 
• Jeff Hamilton Recognitions (3) – Burial site in East Belton Cemetery, Jeff Hamilton 

Park near South Belton Middle School, and a State Historical Marker on UMHB 
campus. 

 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 14, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Exhibit 7 is a vicinity map of the location in this request along IH 35. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Amount: Nominal amount for Park/Street signage 
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No  
 
Recommendation 
 
Conduct a Work Session and provide Council input on this request, decision-making 
process, names, and a historic walking trail along Nolan Creek. 
 
Attachments 
 
Request letter from Luke and Kayla Potts 
Request email from Douglas Brito 
Resolution 2013-20/Street Naming and Facility Naming Policy 
Transcribed Deed from J.D. and Allie Crawford 
Original Deed from J.D. and Allie Crawford 
Map of Belton Cultural and Historical Resources 
Vicinity Map of Location of Request 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Luke/Kayla Potts Request received June 10, 2020 (Ex.1) 
 

2. Douglas Brito Request received June 19, 2020 (Ex.2) 
 

3. City Policy on Street/Facility Name Change Adopted June 11, 2013 
(Ex.3) 
 

4. Deed on 2.5 acres Park Land (transcribed), conveying property from 
J.D. & Allie Crawford in 1892 (Ex.4) 
 

5. Deed on 2.5 acres Park Land (original in cursive) (Ex.5) 
 

6. Map of Belton Cultural and Historical Resources – Possible Historic 
Walking Trail along Nolan Creek with Story Boards at Park, Harris 
Community Center, MLK Bridge, Jeff Hamilton sites, others (Ex.6) 
 

7. Map of Confederate Park and Confederate Park Road (Ex.7) 

City of Belton 
Confederate Park/Street Name 

Council Work Session 
July 14, 2020 

 






















































	Agenda - 071420 Workshop
	#WS2 - Staff Report - River Farms MUD
	#WS2 - Attachments
	#3 - Minutes - 062320
	#4 - Staff Report - Salado VFD ESD
	#4 - Attachments
	Untitled
	#5 - Staff Report - Interlocal for Transit Alternatives
	#5 - Attachments
	#6 - Staff Report - Demo of 603 S Penelope
	#6 - Attachments
	#7 - Staff Report - Charter Amendments
	#7 - Attachments
	#8 - Staff Report - Renaming Confederate Park
	#8 - Attachments



